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_U.S. OWNERSHIP AND CONTROL OF VESSELS ' * -
'OPERATING IN THE MARITIME SECURITY PROGRAM

AT i Ty : ¢ S
‘HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,! '© " @ s
P - “COMMITTEE ON ARMED‘SERVICES; "

- SPECIAL OVERSIGHT PANEL ON' THE MERCHANT MARINE, - -
- e Washington, DC; Tiesday, July 16, 2002,
The panel met, pursuant to call, at 3:54 p.m., in room 2212, Ray-"

burn House Office Building, Hon. Duncan Hunter (chairman of the
panel) presiding. R " b R

OPENING , STATEMENT OF HON. DUNCAN HUNTER, A REP-
RESENTATIVE FROM CALIFORNIA, CHAIRMAN, SPECIAL
OVERSIGHT PANEL ON THE MERCHANT MARINE k
Mr. HUNTER. Okay, folks, we apologize for the delay, here. That.

is the way the Houseé works., When they are ready to vote, we vote.

Ang ~h§pefully we will have about an hour or so before we have to

go back. o ) : o
The' special panel will come to ordef. PP
And I would first like towelcome the' witnesses that are sched-

uled before us today. And, again, thanks." And thanks for your pa-"

tience. ‘ ' ' IO B
‘Although we have some time ‘before the current Maritime Secu-

rity Program (MSP) expires, the panel wanted to get started ﬁ'fght

now with the hope that we can get something enacted well before

the current expiration date of 2005. .

I understand that '%vettihg’ agreéement among all the-‘disparate in-
terests will be difficult and T also‘understand that paying for a new
program will be equally challenging. What 1 hope the panel will ‘do
is work through each of the:difficult:issues, with a.goal of getting
agreement on a consensus package that we.can.all unite behind.
It is clear to me at this point that we will not. be able to satisfy:
each and every desire. . - R TS S T R DR

'This is the first of what I hope will be several additional hear--
ings: relating to the Maritime Security Program. The next hearing
will address issues related to commercial shipbuilding and the.

MSP program. I hope:that hearing will also address additional in-

centive programs, such; as-needed .changes to our tax laws, We.may -

also need.to. hear from other components, such as.the bulk opera-

BOES. - "ot e T S STa e ngso T e e e
Before ‘we proceed to markup, I believe-the panel will need to”

hear from those within. the government- who-sef the requirements

for commercial reserve sealift capability. Accordingly, I will invite

th_f; -head. of the Transportatign; Comimand, General Handy;: to tes-
tify. Lot Pt o "~‘v:~';~' BN - sel iR
i by s B (’1) (S I K R L S IS SN lrzx.‘ £
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We all know that if we do not get his support for the key ele-
ments that reauthorization of MSP will be very difficult. And quite
frankly, I think these two gentlemen recognize that we are not just
getting access to ships in the Maritime Security Program, but also
the infrastructure that goes with them We need to hear the impor-
tance of that part of; th ackage.

Finally, after we bui dp the wecord, I want to get the -administra-
tion before this panel to hear their view, get their support, and,
most importantly, receive a commitment to include funding for a
new program in their budget.

And T want to.thank Mr. Allen and Mr. Taylor. And Mr. Allen
is the ranking member. He has given us great support and guid-
ance. And I understand he is not with us right now.. gut Mr. Taylor
is here and I would:liketo let h1m make any comments that he
might wish to make. , L

Mr. Taylor. A ' ‘

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hunter can be found in the Ap-
pendix on page 49.]

STATEMENT OF HON GENE TAYLOR A REPRESENTATIVE
: FROM MISSISSIPPI

Mr. TAYLOR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I was not expectlng Mr
Allen not to be here. So,. if you do not m.1nd whatever statement
he had, we will just send it to the record. O

Mr. HUNTER. ~}Excellent

And if any other members have any statement they. would like °
to make, please feel free,. Does anybody. else have anything they
would like to say before we get started with testimony?

In that case, why don’t we just, for purposes of convenience r1ght
now, just start with Mr. Alario-.and let’s Just go nght across .the
panel left to right.

And Mr, Alario, the floor is yours, sir.

. STATEMENT OF MR. ROBERT J. ALARIO PRESIDENT,
QFF [ORE MARINE OPERATORS’ ASSOCIATION

Mr. ALARIO. Thank you,-Mr. Chairman.

God4d afternoon, members of the panel. v :

My name is Robert J. Alario. I am privileged to serve as pres1—
dent of the Offshore Marine Service Association (OMSA), which s
based in New Orleans, Louisiana. My association: represents ap-
proximately 250 companies that are engaged directly or in general
support of : offshore oﬂ ‘and gas ex'ploratlon drllhng, or productlon,w
worldwide, . -+ .cun ‘

A list of our members has been attached f0r the record And bur”
members and crews; it should be known; operate in excess of 1,200
vessels worldwide. These are special purpose, uniqué:vessels. But '
nevertheless, though we are often regarded as sort of second cous-
ins to the merchant marine; we are part of the U.S. flag'fleet and
the largest participating marine 1nterests that operate both dOmes-
tically and«n foreign theatres. . - -

. We wish to ‘thank you, Mr. Chalrman for thls op ortum ﬂrst
and foremost, to express our fundamental support for an e ectlve
reauthorization of the U.S. Maritime Security Program (MSP).
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At the same time, however, we are compelled to express our:iop-
position to proposals to repeal; relax; or modify: Section:2 U.S. eiti~
zenship provisions -of law that govern companies: that would own
and: operate ships. under the Maritime Security Prograin:- b

- While OMSA companies:do not operate ships in the Maritime: Se-=
cunty Program; we are concerned: that.the proposed change to U.S.
maritinie law governing: U.8. citizenship requirements, that: is' Sec-
tion 2 réqulrements, for vessels that are operating under the U.S.
- flag poses; in our-opinion, a more fundamental, ‘potentially corro-
give threat to the: citizenship requirements. for operatmn of U S
flag vessels, not only in this area; but-in others. .- = - =

: We feel that the proposed éhange would, inexorably - and 1nev1$-e
~ tably, erode our-ability:to truly control the ownerslnp, loyalty, and
reliability of access to vessels operating in our: nation’s domestic
and, more partlcularly in. our case, offshore maritime sectors that
presently fall within the Jones Act, as well as within.the MSP..; -

We have been assured that the proposa.ls to modify. o'wn'ershlp re-
quirements from Section:2 to documentation citizenship: o qualify
for: operation of U.S. flag-vesgels within this Maritime Sécurity Pro-
gram will not translate into an-erosion of citizénship standards rel-
ative to Jones Act operations. We. desperately wamnt: to believe this;
but -our experience, and particularly our:experience:since 1998,
when several potential loopheles have been opened up in U.S. law,-‘
our experiences simply do not. support:this thesis; unfertunately.

The underlying pillarsiof our maritime:laws -have ‘been and are,
clearly, to foster American ownership, opération, construction, and:
crewing. These principles are embodied in our maritime:laws-in
order to ensure that the United States has the industrial ‘¢apability
to build a:fleet:of vessels that are controlled by American compa~
nies and crewed by American c1t1zens to meet our national secunty
requirements, in partlcular».

‘A Section 2 U.S. citizen, if not. protected in: the 1mp1ementat10n
of the MSP. program,: ‘would be: placed:in  an unfair; uncompetitive
position. :As compared. with-a-documentation c1t1zen ‘the Section: 2
company is subject to U.S..corporate taxes; mgmﬁcantly more stmn—
gent regulation and liability exposure. .. -

‘To-expand the program to:include- non-cltlzen art1c1gants would
eventually force the American companies to go “foreign” in:order: to
compete, or, more hkely, rehnqu1sh the: ﬁeld entlrely to: forelg'n-conb
trolled companies.: - y

Now, we believe. that a change to any one of the three: underlymg
pillars or principles.of historieal U.S. maritime pohey, m our opm-ﬁ
ion, will have a direct impact on the others. :

- And we perceive that changes to:maritime: laws governmg the:
ownershlp of vessels operating:in theU.S. o forelrgn trade will; pro+:
spectively, ‘also:-probably .impact: the fleet' serving our domestic
trade, arguments notwﬂ:hstandmg If we are right, it will, unfortu-:
nately;: be too late to.correct the. problems that are created ‘by the
liberalization of the citizenship requirements.: ;

The changes bemg proﬁosed to this panel; we beheve, would cre-
ate a new, and;:we: further believe; a:dangerous exceptionto the:
fundamentally sound Section 2 citizenship requirement by permit-
ting, for extended periods’ foreign-owned:-and controlled companies
to operate: maritime security vessels; if it'is.a party:to a special 8e-:
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curity agreement with the Department of Defénse. The implication,
which-is. arguable, isithat: a:special security agreement 1s an ade~
quate substitute for independent Section 2 citizenship. - ; /

We contend.a foreign company: with a specidl security eement :
or-SSA; does’ not; in our:opinion, necessarily: ensure. t! e S. Gov-
ernment reliable access to a.vessel under all circumstances.: . <

OMSA, though it does not:participatet in theMilitary Secunty
Program is extremely:sensitive to; and suppoitive:of the objectives
that U.8. crews and their jobs within this program and beyond be
protected:. But we do not:see that:the promotion and retention of
Section 2 U.S. citizenship requxm'ements would -adversely impact
that objective. To the contrary, we believe, that thmx approach An
the long-term, is more consistent with U.S. interests.: -

If the attempts to achieve reauthorization of the program, ‘which
we ‘do support wholeheartedly, comes at the expense of:compromis--
ing the Section2: ‘citizenship requirements currently in'U.S. law,
we respectfully maintain that this proposed compromise, offered to
obtain a shart-term solution; if you will;, will, inevitably, undermine
the Jones Act and; ult1ma.tely, although unmtentlonally, this pro-
posal will-have, we think, the opposite, adverse effect or impact on
Jobs for'U.S. mariners; the economic viability of U.S. vessel owners
and marine operators; and upon reliable U.S. control of marine as-
sets engaged in routine commercial Jones Act: trades; as well as
more sensitive operations critical to our national secunty 5 «

So we'say that reauthorization under the purview of this panel
and the committee must be, hopefully, obtamed by other means, if
at all possible. = .

In. the final analysis, the proposal to give documentatlon c1t12en‘
companies the right to. operate vessels directly-i in the program con-
cerns us greatly. y

While we are anxious to exped1te congressxonal reauthomzatmn
Mr. Chairman, of this program, we are opposed ‘to. sacrificing the
concept of -Section 2 citizenship and ‘the broader problems: it pro-
spectively creates for U.S: vessel.owners, operators and mariners. -

We believe, and respectfully request,.that this committee does: fa-
vorably receive and advocate those positions and - actions, instead,
as proposed by industry and the maritime unions that would, as sll
of us would want to see and that we can agree upon, enhance:the:
economic and ‘national security benefits of the United States; ex-
pand the program to authorize additional privately owned, under
the provisions of Section 2 citizenship, we :say, militarily useful
United States-flag commercial vessels; establish- an MSP payment
schedule that better reflects’the tost: of -doing business under the
U.S. flag operations by extending the term and increasing the level
of payments under: charter; and, in general, enact provisions that
would  provide reasonable ﬂex1b11nty in: the adm1n1strat1on of the
program.

In all of these respects, we can.and do - support what our counter—
parts and other stakeholders 'who may have either a direct or indi-
rect: interest in:the program, and an-interest ini:the ramifications
that might follow from the modifications:to' the program. ..

We clearly accept -the faet:-that: there:are parties, beside our-
selves, who will appear before this panel that feel very protective:
of the Jones Act and would guard it jealously. For example; I per-
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sonally -know: Mr, E(rlc .Johnsen; and- have the highest respect for
this gentleman. l: am~ well :aware:of his ‘personal commitment :to:
maintain the 1ntegr1ty of the Jones Act as I do- the mantrme
union§. - 3 RN o

Some of these people wﬂl not agree thh us on the: Sectlon 2 c1t1-
zenship issue. They may ibe«in favor: of:allowing foreign-controlled
documentation citizens with equivalency with Section 2. U.8. citi-
zens under certain circumstances; within ‘this :subject program.. /-

So, Mr. Chairman, we would, respectfully, ask-the: panel to in-
clude specific language; as this-hearing:proceeds, to. make it clear
that no matter: what:the: outcome: of:these ‘hearings:may: be; there:
should be no action-taken or inference made dvailable through the'
hearings- whi¢h «céuld have:a precedential 1mpact or 1nﬂuence with
respect to weakening Jones:Act-operations: i et

-And T :believe that everybedy:in:this. room today, whﬂe we may
have some disagreements, would agree and support that 1f the com-
mittee sees fit and finds it possible to do that.

We submit that our con erns are real and not theoretlcal We are
already seeing that sincé - 996 fore1 éo;mp xﬁ s have used several
newly available loophdle’s in"the law td ‘proceed ‘to infiltrate mari-
Xme semces that haVe been tradltronally protected by thex Johes

ct.

-And we therefore, urge Cdngress to- move qulckly, but cautlo'u’sly,
to. reauthorize the. MSP, but to.reject; ini this process; any effort or.
proposal: that would Weaken u. S Ma)ntlme Law and the Jones Act
specifieally. ' :

Our natlon at th1s t1me and in, the Cuzrrent c1rcumstances we'
feel needs a U.S: merchant. marinethat is traly,:effectively :con-
trolled by Section 2. American citizens, dedicated:to serving our do-:
mestic and international commerce. I do not feel-=and many of us
will agree—that this can be accomplished equally by foreign-con::
trolled corporations who:-may: be run by decent peop é But under
the circumstances today, that:is not enough. .+

. In conclusion; we: 'wish to :acknowledge! the commexrty of thls
matter, Mt Chan'man And--we feel compelled to reiterate: that,
while 'we strongly:disagree with the proposition to repeal.or modlfy
the requirement for Section 2 -citizenship to-dperate vessels within
the Military Security Program, we are committed to keeping dia::
logue open, and ‘look forward to working with::you, ‘and all con-
cerned, to find common ground from which we:can construttively
advance the broad interests of the U.S: maritime industry..2' o

And above all; we are:committed to the proposition.that this na-’
tion must be: persuaded that its security-and welfare-is at risk and:
that our country will be exceptionally vulnerable until Congress
acts: to rebuild a. healthy .and : versatile U.S.. Merchant ‘Marine,
based on U.S. built: bottoms;.owned:and operated by: . S Sectlon
2 citizens and crewed by well trained, loyal 1.8, citizens.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman.'We are:grateful to you and the panel
for- your thoughtful attention to our: v1ews, and for your kind atten-
tion'to our comments.: .o o 0 s L0 D s

[The prepared. statement of Mr Alamo can be found in the Ap-
pendix:-on page 52.] - . -

Mr. HUNTER} Well; thank you very much Mr Alarlo S

Mr. ALARIO. Yeb; sir. - - o
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Mr. HUNTER. I appreciate your very. thoughtful statement. :And
I understand that you do not represent a Sectlon 2 c1tlzen, but
that, nonetheless, you feel that the—-— " g

Mr. ALARIO. All of my members are Sectlon 2 c1tlzens, sir. I rep-
resent them, in essence.. - S8

Mr. HUNTER. Oh, okay. You do represent—-—-— :

Mr. ALARIO. Yes, gir. _—

Mr. HUNTER [contlnumg] Sectlon 2 citizens. -

Mr. ALARIO. Yes.. . .

Mr. HuNTER. But you feel that this: proposed change could start
us on a slippery slope with respect to c1t1zensh1p requ.lrements em-
bedded in the Jones Act.

Mr. ALARIO.. We feel intensely that that could be the case. And
we have evidence that that is already beginning to. happen. -

Mr.  HUNTER. Okay. Thank -you very much for ‘your' statement
We ap;i‘ reciate you being w1th us today

ruchan. :

STATEMENT OF JOR! AN M. TRUCHAN, CHAIRMAN AND CEO,
AMERICAN SHIP MANAGEMENT

Mr: TRUCHAN Mr. Chan'man, members of the panel, my name is
Jordan Truchan. I am the president and Chief Executive Officer.
(CEO) of Patriot Holdings, American :Ship Management, ASM, and
Patriot Contract Services (PCS) all based in Walnut Creek; Califor-
nia. It is an honor for me to appear before you today to speak about.
the Maritime Secunty Program and the role the Umted States Sec-
tion 2 citizens fulfill in that program.

We believe the MSP program:is working well MSP is absolutely
essential to the c¢omntinuing existence ‘of the American Merchant
Marine and, therefore, the natlonal defense and security of our na-
tion.

I respectfully submlt it as a statement to the record. And at this
time, I would like to make some highlighted key comments.

Mr. HUNTER. And without objection, all written statements that
have been .prepared by the witnesses will beaccepted into ‘the:
record.  But-.do_not feel that you have to repeat your statement
word-for-word. It will be accepted in and you are free to summanze‘
in any way you wish. :

Mr, TRUCHAN: Okay. It is falrly—blt ofa summary

Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Mr. TRUCHAN. American Ship Management is. a. Unlted States
Section 2 citizen as defined by the Merchant Marine Act-of 1916.
It is wholly owned by myself and my two foundmg pnnclpals all
of whom are U.S. citizens.

ASM holds nine MSP slots with the Mantlme 'Administration
(MARAD) and is a member and anactive partlclpant in the Vol-
untary Intermodal Sealift Agreement.

Our affiliate, Patriot Contract Services, is a major contractor for
the military sealift command, holding the contract for the operation

and maintenance of 11 Large Medium Speed Roll On/Roll Offs RO/
ROs), or Large, Medium Speed Roll On/Roll Off (LMSRs). ‘

Additional y, PCS employed in the United Stateés ~Navy (USN)
Military Sealift Command, MSC, surge program. Additionally, PCS
manages six ships for the Maritime Administration’s: Ready Re-
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serve: Fleet:., All together, our:company currently manages 26! U‘S
flag commereial and: goverhment:vessels....

ASM employs: over 1;500 U.S: citizen seafarers covermg over 500*
seagoing ~billets. In addition, we have 150 ‘shore-based positions
also filled by the maritime unions. We employ over 50 shore-based!
management personnel workmg m ofﬁces m the states of Califor-
nial Louisiana and Virginia. *

In 1997, ASM was formed by the three prmclpals to be a’ coma?
pletely’ 1ndependent U.S. citizen ‘entity. This ‘entity would operate
U.S. flag vessels enrolled in MSP, in accordance with U.S. law. .

ASM submitted applications with MARAD for MSP' agreements
to -cover. the. nine¢ ntamershtps Amerigan President, Lines (APL)
had committed to the veymmg tnfor participation in MSP.
Throughout a seven-month perlod underwent intense scru-
tiny' by MARAD 1’ confirtiits’ independent 'status before- finally
bemg' a“Warded thése MSP agreements -ABM assumed’ operational’
control of the'APL U.S. flag fleet in* November of 1997, concvirrent’
glth the sale of all APL stock to Smgapore ’based Neptune Dnent

ines, ="

ASM prowdes unique’ $h1p management serwces ‘
sponsiblé fot the safe navigation of the yessel: pro{ndeé :
crew; places all insurances for the’Vve ssels; crievir and. b!rgo outfits
and’ provisions. the vessels; maintains the vessels in & g seawort
condition at all times; ensures regulatory and statutor lian
enforces “¢reW- distipline, and comp liafice with' collective bargaining
agreements; and 'provides emergenpy ‘response ‘and Gt ptmgei‘
planning for the vessels operations. ; ’ i 5

Asg the regpons1b1e arty m stage 3 of the V. erm .
Sealift Agreement (VISA), ASM enjoys close working relationships’
with the. United States ' ansportatlon Command, MARAD, and
MSC. ASM has partlclpated in numerous Joint Plénmng Adv1sory
Group exercises and,all visa CEQ meetings. . .

ASM mamtams collectlve barga;mng agreements w1th slx ,man-
time unions.” As a’ concerned U.S. -citizen.. .company, ASM. has.
worked diligently to .develop opportunities for American seafarers
and recruit new seafarers to augme;nt the aging. and dnmmshmg
American seafarer workforce :

ASM’s business model is. the prototype for the current IV%[SB ,fSec-J
tion 2 citizen operator to operate, U.S. flagships on hehalf of non.?
U.S. citizen carriers. in.the U.S. flag trades. This business arrange-
ment provides the carrier with the. ability to carry U.S. Govern-.
ment impelled. cargoes, while: providing. strategic sealift .capacity to.
the U.S. Government and Jobs for U S. seafarers and shore-based},
workers. i, - ‘

ASM is.. comm1tted to 1ts ongomg partlmpatlon in. the current
MSP and ASM is equally committed to working with all the par- :
ties to accomplish reauthorization gnd expansion of MSP.:". ‘

In closing, I want to thank you for the -opportunity to promde tes—
timony before this: panel:om:the: subject of MSP. ASM is. & wholly
U.S:, citizen-owned -Section:2:. company:formed: for: the. purpose: of
providing U.S. flag sealift capacity to the U.S. Government. In:this:
effort: ASM..creates jobs for:American:seafarers and: ofﬁce Nvorkers
while providing tax:revenues for the 'U.S. Government. - SRITRSS
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ASM provides our ‘country an industrial base for ship operation
and management in the United States. And last,. but -most impor--
tant, ASM, as a United States Section 2 eompany,.is committedto
the securlty and prospenty of the Un1ted States .of Amerlca and 1ts
loyal citizens.

Thank you very much sir.

[The prepared statement of Mr Truchan ca,n be found 1n the Ap-
pendix on page 61.] -

Mr. HUNTER. Thank you, Mr Truchan Thank you very much for.
your statement. ;

Mr. Keegan. : : SRR,

STATEMENT OF JAY T, KEEGAN PRESIDENT U 8. SI-IIP
MANAGEME

Mr KEEGAN. Mr. Chamnan and: members of the panel my namef,
is Jay Keegan. I am president and CEQ of U.S. Ship Management,.
Incorporated (USSMI? And I am pleased to be here today.

Mr. Chairman, On April 26, 2001, you stated that U.S. owner-,
ship and U.S. control requ1rements are critical to the contmued Vi-,
ability of the MSP program and must be preserved. It ig atifying
that in a letter to you, dated June 18, 2001, all of the otﬁler mem-
bers of this Fanel agreed w1th your. pos1t10n

In light of the events since that time, I would subrmt that MSP
Amerlcan c1t1zensh1p policy has become even more critical. .

Mr. Chairman, I want to be clear that U.S. Ship’ Management ’
supports the Maritime Security Prolgram ‘We also support a prop-
erly designed reauthorization of MSP, but we must get it nght -

Although we have been excluded from the process, we under-
stand that Maersk, APL and others have drafted proposed legisla-
tion to reauthorize the MSP program three years before its current
authorization expires, whlch c0nta1ns provisions that truly strain
credulity.

Their legislation would bind the U.S. Government to 20-year op-
erating agreements while allowing the oi)erators to opt out of the
contracts and even transfer their vessels to foreign flag, simply
upon giving notice to the secretary of transportation.

‘For example, just before their vessels are required and the ‘con-
tingency in the Taiwan Straits or Iraq, under their bill, they could
give ‘their notice and transfer their vessels, perhaps, to a Peoples
Republic of China (PRC) flag or an Iragqi flag. v

Their legislation equates a foreign-control led document"atiOn citi-
zen with a U.S. citizen-owned and controlled company. This would
put American companies like mine out of business. And most im-
portartly, would have profound national security implications. '

I understand that the seagoing unions feel pressured to support
Maersk in these efforts because Maersk has threatened to transfer
its American flag vessels to foreign flags if their legislation is not
enacted. This is an idle threat. It is not logical for Maersk, a $35-
billion company, to abandon U.S. flag vessels and .U.S. Government
cargo in hope of saving, perhaps, a few million dollars. -

But if they did, other compan1es would certamly step in to oper-~
ate U.S. flag vessels.

Mr. Chairman, the focus of today’s heanng is U S: ownershlp and.
control of vessels. operating in the Maritime Security Program. I do-
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not believe  Maersk.representatives have fully:disclosedsito: Con-
gress, ‘or.to-this: panel;: mermatmmwhlch wﬂl be cntical tb yourr?
consideration of this 1mpmrtant dssaei - o '

- Specifically, ‘the :secrétary: of ‘state n]nas; ‘demgnated Imn Iraq,-
Libya;: and:Sudan: as state sponsors of international terrormm, yet
Maersk: continues to:do business.in these countries. I ask that proof
of this fact, including material' owned from Maersk’s own Web sﬂ:e,‘
be includedin the record, which I havewith me. ~*

According ' to Maersky they bégan serving in- Iram in 1950 and
quote, since then' provide ‘uninterrupted service to Iranian cus-
tomers even' during: the revolution and Iran-Iraq war petiod, end
quote. Therefore, Maérsk' providéd continueds service to Iran’ while
Americans ‘weré being held hostage there and throughout the en-
tire period of U.S. economic sanctions against that country.

Let: me be clear, ‘J'am:not’ suggestmg ‘that Maersk has vmlated
U.S. ‘law, because after all," Maersk is” not ‘a” U.S.: ‘eitizen. But
Maersk is appearing before this panel and clalmmg they should be
considered ‘as the’ equivalent of & Section 2 citizen.

Mr. Chairman, it is not enough to be “like” & cmzen Contraryi
to Maersk’s rhetonc, Section 2 eompanies like mine are not shams.
We play a vital role and help to ensure U.S. national security. We
also provide;real jobs: to real people and:provide exactly the kind
of check a«nd‘:bal'ancexintended by :Section  2-for:1].S, national secu-
rity. .

Let me give you a clear exainple of" why Ametican control of MSP
enrolled -ships is_critical. On November, 26, 2001, while news re-
ports .were 1nd1caﬁu),g that Al ‘Qaeda and Taliban fighters were
being ‘allowed to cross the border into Iran from ghamstan,
Maersk directed one of our ships, the Sealand Express, an Amer-
ican flag D9J class vessel, to proceed tq thé port of Bandar-e Abbas
in Iran, The ship was not due by at the time. And, Maersk bégan..
loading containers, on board, des inied. for Iran, which could not ac: .
commodated on Maersk’s own foreign-flagged vessel which, goes to
Iran every week., ,

As an Amencah, g;tlzen company, wholly owned by Amerlca;n, c1}t1-
zens, our loyalty and obhgatmns were. clear. We would not allow, .
the ship to go to Iran. Maersk containers, destined for Tran
were removed from the Sealand. Express and the vessel resumed its.
normal schedule.

As Erie Johnsen sald, xa commercmlly wable U.sS. ﬂag ,ﬂeet is .
also the, way. to -ensure that.. foreign, carriers; do not,: exert control -
over the .pnice. of.. U‘s 1mports andrexports.: But is that: the case if
that-U.S. flag fleet is. owned and oontrolled from Beumg or Slnga-e(
pore or Denmark?. -

«Mr. Chairman, some appearmg before you today have tnedato*
color their proposal regarding citizenshipj as one: that. tightens the.
requirements. That is pure sophistry. It has been; and. remains, the:
stated policy..of the :‘United States. to-have:a merchant marine, and
I quote, owned :andpperated tinder the-United:Statesoflag by eiti-
zens of the United States:insofar asimay; be prastical. :Citizen: ofithe -
United States is defined to:mhean a’'Seetiorn 2 citizen.:To; erisure that
poli€y result;:if the MSP program:is ichanged at all, we-should:eh-:
suresthat only. Section 2 icitizens:canobe. MSP confractors. i .5y
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In avtime of national: emergency, ‘the United: States needs to-
know that:it:can count' oh genuine :U.S. citizenk: rather than:the-
legal ‘fiction of documentation citizens; Unfortunately, we can envi«
sion~. conflicts. where - foreign-controlled - documentation . citizens
might -decide to be neutral when our nation requires:commitment.’

If we permit a documentation citizen the same rights and. privi:-
leges as a Section 2 citizen; we will hasten the demise of the citi:
zen-owned U.S. Merchant Marine in the- foreign trades. And,.as im-;
portantly, it will eventually. open up both the domestic and non-
contiguous trades to foreign ownership.and control. -

Do we want this. to happen? I think not. The- Marltlme Secunty
Program.and the. Section ,2 citizenship policy of the MSP have
served our country well. And.I would respectfully submlt that the.
policy should not be modified. . . .-

Thank you for this opportunity- to test1fy And I look . forward to
answering. any questlons which yoy or your other panel members
may have. =

[The prepared statement of Mr Keegan ean be found in the Ap-
pendix on page .65.] : ; «

Mr. HUNTER. Thank - you, Mr Keegan

Mr. Johnsen.

STATEMENT OF ERIK F. JOHNSEN PRESIDENT
INTERNATIONAL SHIPHOLDING ‘CORPORATION

Mr1 JOHNSEN. Thank you, Mr, Chairman, and members of the
pane

I am partlcularlz pleased by the invitation to appear before you
today to address the vital need of the reauthorization of the Mari-
time Security Program to ensure the continued v1ab111ty and sur-
vival of the U.S. flag fleet.

T 'am 'Erik. Johnsen and I “ain ‘president of International
Shipholding Corporation’ {ISC). 18¢ Sartlclpates in the Maritime
Security Pro%ram with its principal U.S! flag stibgidiaries: Central
Gulf Lines; Inc. and Waterman Steamship Corporation, both of
which prov1de a wide range of oceangoing freight transportation
through - pure ‘car-truck carrier -services, ' Roll' On/Roll Off
breakbulk, and domesti¢ coastwise services.

I am speakmg here today on behalf of Central Gulf, Waterman
and other U.S8. flag participants in the Marltlme Secunty Program, -
including American Roll On/Roll Off carriers, American Pregident’
Lines and its sister company, American Automar Maersk, Sedland,
Overseas Shipholding Group-and American Ship Management

Though many of these U.S. flag carriers’ will submit separate
written statements for the record, I wish'to strorigly emphasize to
K/(Im that we all, collectively, support the continuing:rieed: of the

aritime Securlty Program and urge -you to expedltwusly enact
legislation to reauthorize that pregram;:which is so v1ta1‘ to the seat-
lift capability: of our mation ‘and its armed forces. '

Mr..Chairman, during the past year, Central Gulf: and Waterman
have been,»WOrkmg closely -with the U.8. %ransportation command,
the maritime administration and:othér-maritime" security -program .
participamts and the maritimesldbor unions in an. effort to develop
a legislative: pro Hosal to . realithorizerthe- Maritime ‘Security Pro-
gram that would preserve amd:enhance’ the -Maritime - Security -

R
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Fleet.' And:I. amiivery pléased to:report that we have ‘beathed: a-
strong ‘consBnsus on the statitory «priWrs ; :zaﬁhat are rethred to
ensure the viability of suéh & Progham. (R

To that end; we strengly support an. extensmon of the Mantlme
Security Program for a period of 20 years. This extension would:
give ‘investors. and:leading; institutions: more confidence to iprovide
the funds necessary. for:the replacement of vessels and the expan-
sion of the 1J.S. flag fleét.-

Additionally, we urge the expans1on of the Mantlme Securlty
Fleet to at:least 60 militarily useful vessels, an increase of 13- ves-
sels“beyond: the: currentauthorization. This would ‘bolster the U.S.:
sealift capacity, while providing a greater bage of* employment for
American merchant mariners.

We further propose that each vessel in the Maritime Secunty
Program ‘would be eligible to receive $3.5 million in: the first year
of the extended program, with annual inflationary ‘adjustments
thereafter, to keep these vessels under U.S. flag'and to make them
available to the military in timeb of national emergency.

Mr. Chairman, at this junéture, Iiwould like to point out that
Central Gulf and Waterman are United States owners and are Sec-
tion 2 citizens, under the Shipping Act-of 1916, We have partici-
pated in numerous discussions with' the De‘partment of Defense,"
the Maritime" Admlmstratlon, as’ well as U.S. maritime Tabor’
unions and the Maritime Secunty part1c1pants concernlng pr0po
als wherein’ documentation citizens, under Title 46 of the United
States Code, and their owners would have to ful]y ablde by. the De-
partment of Defense spec1a1 security agreements in order to take
part on a priority level in'the Maritime Security Program.

As Section 2 citizens, Central Gulf and, Waterman believe that
the proposed consensus for reauthorization of the. Marltlme Secu-,
rity Program is an acceptable compromise in- hsat it gives the nec-
essary safeguards to justify the equal status of Section 2 and docu-.
mentation owners in a very limited way for the 47 grandfathered
Maritime Security Program vessels, while at the same time majn-
taining the Section 2 citizen pr10r1ty for the 13 Vessels that ‘would
be added‘to the program. . * -

Furthermore, the Maritime Secunty Program and our proposed
reauthorization provisions. only concern the engagement -of. foreign
trade with the United States and under no c1rcumstances would
they or are they intended to affect theiJones Act. o

Mr. Chaxrman«,, tha,s leglsla,tlvea comprom1se provxdes for the nec-

t1me Secunty Program a.nd fnrther, ensures that at: least 60. act;ve
militarily useful, privately-owned vessels will be under. the U.S.
flag and readily avallable to the Department of D.efense m t1me of
emergency. g

Mr. Chairman, . I very mueh look forwa.srd to workmg w1th you
and your panel on this matter of vital 1mportance to our nat1ona1
and economic ‘security. And thank:you very-mueh.:: ot

[The prepared. statément:of Mr: ‘JohnSen can’ be found 1n ‘the Ap-x,‘
pendix on page 68.] -

-Mr.. HUNTER. Mr Johnsenf

Mr: Bowmans-. e

"thanh you for your statement
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STATEMEENT OF ROY G..BOWMAN, VICE PRESIDENT FOR GOV:
RNMENT AFFAIRS, AMERICAN PRESIDENT LINES, EXEQK-
TIVE VICE PRESIDENT, AMERICAN AUTOMAR INC, . -

Mr. BOWMAN:" G(md afternoon Mr Chalrman and" members of
the committee. :

I amchere today on behalf of APL and Amencan Automar We
concur in Mr. Johnsen's statement." And we have gubmitted a sepa--
rciate Ttatement for the record And I will not burden you \mth the

etails.. .

But a few words about APL APL has operated U 8. ﬂagsh;lps for
over a century.. It was a: participant in the operating differential
subsidy program before that program was: replaces by the MSP pro-
gram.

American Automar, which is a s1ster company, is a. documenta-
tion citizen that has a special security: agreement . by reagon of its
contracts with the military sealift.commend. - .

Automar was, also, a Section 2 citizen that- was an MSP part1c1- .
pant just prior to its acquisition by the Neptune Orient Lines Lim-
ited (NOL) group.. So the company has been;on both eldes of this
question.

Our experience with a speclal securlty agreement under ‘which
American Automar has operated  since: its acquisition in May of
2001, convinces us that documentation c1t1zens with these types of
agreements are every bit as reliable as Section 2 citizens. = ,

Like Mr. Johngen, we wish to see a reauthorization of ‘the’ MSPX
program, with an a(ijustment to take into account the changed cir-
cumstances in the amount of the p yment ‘And we ‘urge the com-
mittee to work to that end as promptly as poss1ble ‘

Thank you.

[The’ prepared staten%nt of Mr Bonan can be found in the Ap- .
pendix on page 74. 1 )

Mr. HONTER. Thank you, Mr Bowman You get the prize for the'
most succinct and’ conclse statement of the day i ‘

“Mr. BowMaN. I try,

Mr. HUNTER Mr. Cla.hcey, 51r? S

STATEMZENT OF JOHN P. CLANCEY CHAIBMAN OF THE
- BOARD, MAERSK SEA;LAND

Mr1 CLANCEY Thank you, Mr Chalrman, and members of the*
pane :
I am chalrman of Maersk Inc responsfble for the operatlon of
Maersk Line Limited. (MLL) which “today is the largest:operate of
American' flagships; with 53 ships based out of Norfolk, Virginia:
We ‘hdve been charscterized in @ few different ways today, but
to set the record straight, we operate: ships directly under MSP: and
also through a Se¢tion 2 company that was created because of reg-
ulations of MARAD. We also operate ships directly through:the
U.S. Governmentunder.a top-secret clearance on; the oceans ‘of the
world: And those ships are out:there today. “
We have operated:ships-for:over 20’ years for the U S nGovern- ,
ment. And I think the record speaks for ourselfin: terms of our reh-
ability and our responsiveness. oy
The arrangement that: we: areqdealmg w1th today s an outgrowth
of, actually, the acquisition of APL. And as structural asditestab-
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lished it—was an exception at:that time. Today the exception is the
rule; with one exception, my goed friend, Mr: Johnsen. '« :

And that is just the result of globalizatmn and ‘the way the eq-
uity markets looked at maritime businesses for: the last five or six
years, making it very difficult to raise the capital necessary to re-'
plenish the fleet. And this 1s a capltal-lntenslve business. d the
costs are very, very high.

The question-is asked,: I mean, Why do you swant’ xthe change"~
Probably the biggest reason is we have significant:investment deci-
sions to make. Our ship is aging; as are my-—other people sitting:
at the panel. And we are talking about, you know, numbers of $60
million, $80 million,~$90 million a :copy. You: need ‘a number of
them. You need ancillar equipment to support them. ' °

And we find:it very difficult to go to-our board and say, “We: need
X dollars, $400 million or $500 million, to buy, to build, buy and:
build assets, and be in-a position where we are hot a]lowed to op-
erate them, particularly: when the board 'is cognizant of the fact
that we have: been operating: ships for over 20 years for the /U.S.
Government. We have participated in Desert Storm and today, in
Afghanistan, playing a significant role.. -

It is~also.important to:understand what we prov1de to the De-
partment of ‘Transportation -and, U.S. Transportation: Command
(TRANSCOM) because: it eertainly just is not vessels. Viessels are
an important-component, bt during Desert Storim; there' was - an
enormous rush of cargo to-Saudi: Arahla Unfortunately, alot of it"
was sequenced incorrectly. '

And what we did is used our network around the world to bring
the cargo back to places: like Algiers, which is. right outside the
Rock of Gibraltar, re-sequence it so that we ensure that you got the
guns before you got the bullets.

And we have these terminals throughout the world.  We have
trucking and intermodal assets that are used in ‘support of the
transportation command. And the investment in these facilities is,
again, in the billions of dollars, and that is all for the. access of the
U.S. Government when they call. B

Today, moving cargo into Afghanistan is a: real- struggle because
there is no port. So we are using our system across northern Eu-
rope, through Russia and through other areas; to:deliver merchan-
dise to the theatre, as requested or commanded by the government

You have heard today all——

Mr. HUNTER. Just one second, Mr. Clancey. How are you movmg
that into the base camps in the theatre in Afghamstan? i

Mr. CLANCEY. We are moving it to——

Mr. HUNTER. What is the last leg? g

Mr. CLANCEY. The last leg is through the “stans”

Mr. HUNTER. Is through where?

Mr. CLANCEY. Through the “stans”... 3 e

Mr. HUNTER. Well, but once you get through the “stans” and you
actually get to the Afghanistan bordeér, how do you get it over?

Mr. CLANCEY. The containers are unloaded and put in military
vehicles and taken to the camps:

Mr. HUNTER. But you do net move it across Afghanistan 1tself7

Mr. CLANCEY. Into Afghanistan? No, Just to the border '

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. Go ahead. ‘
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.Mr. CLANCEY: There: has -also ‘heeni.comment: today- about, you
know, what we:do and what we do:not. do.: But:today, as-I- smhere,
we. have 11,500:Americans, direct and contract emp! oyees,,aWOrlccng
for. us in the. ‘United: States running:this infrastructure. We:have
like numbers in Europe:and in.Asia that allow us to respond to the«
commands and the desires of the mil a%l o

And that just cannot be overlooked at network 1s far: beyond?
the vessels..But .we: are looking at-.an encrmous investment.: Afid
we- think -because : of: what’ we. have done:and: what we: represent
that -we have the right to operate our .own vessels.:: - =

There has been concern raised about: the Jones Act \We never
have and we do not intend te enter:the: Jones Act.. It is very similar
to saying, “I think my neighbor might; rob: a -bank and he did:not-
do itilast month, he might:do it next month,” and on and on and
on. It is a threat ‘not made: hy-us. It hasbeen eréated:: i~ 3

- And, as-people have said, wb-would be willing to: entertam lam?
guage:- that would: prohlblt companies,suehas: ourselves, - docu-
mented citizens with a special: secumty agreement partlclpatlng in:
MSP to enter into the Jones Act.

I think history has demonstrated you kmow, that we..can. be :
quote;, unquote, trusted. I:think: if-you:ask the Marine Corps, they
would give you an:affirmative’ response::I:think: the Department of i
Defense weuld: give -you an.affirmative response.. . ;

:As.all the nembers: of thefpa,nel,IWe think MSP is tembly 1mpor-’

tant. What we: are  able to:provide-is:what: the: military - behevesr
would cost them $9 billion a year and $1 billion:to manage:

And we have committed to-it. We -are ‘committed to. makmg the
investment. And that is-a very-critical issue::Someone has to:come’
forward and build.-new ships and build the containers 'in:the termi-:
nals. And it will be the owners of the vessels that w111 do that g

I thank you for your time, - - .

~{The prepared statement of Mr.: Clancey can be found in the Ap-
pendix on page 81.] «

Mr. HUNTER. Thank you very much Mr Clancey ~

And thank you all, gentlemen, for your testamony I th1nk to-
gether you have put togethen a pretty good composrte that laysv out
the issue for-us very- effectively. - - ~

Mr.-Clancey, is.Iran one of your customers‘? ~

Mr. CLANCEY. We have a:small: fleet of shlps that serves Iran :

Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Mr.. CLANCEY. With no: US; crtlzens mvolved at all And there
are no U.S. citizens in Iran. . o

Mr. HUNTER. I understand So: the Un1ted States is: one : of y0ur
customers, in fact, a very ma_]or Customer s

Mr. CLANCEY. Correct : Deer ¥ - el

Mr. HUNTER. Iran is also a customer and a smaller customer
And you give good service to your customers

Mr. CLANCEY. Correct. -+ ' . He A

Mr. HUNTER.-And' 80 your: customers can. trust you. -

-Mr. CLANCEY. Yes. - i =

‘Mr. HUNTER. Right? That, I mean I presume that: means 1f we:
were in a-hearing:in Iran: rlght now and you were explaining to-the
Iranian government why you .can be trusted not to disserve them
with respect to the United States, you could very :truthfully say,
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“Attorney-client privilege, you are dur customer and we give good
service to our customers: And you cahnot show- any situation in:
which we have given information ‘to thé United :States or 'in any
way: disserved Iran; even though you and the: Un1ted States may,
at some times, have disparate interests.”

Mr. CLANCEY. Yes. But it is also true, Mr. Chalrman that we do

“not do business with-the Iranian:government. It is also true that
we are looked at as a forelgner in t e country of Iran and our pres-
ence is very, very small. - ..

As a global company, we are’ 1nvolved in South Africa, West Afnv
ca, East Africa‘and it is a global enterpnse

Mr. HUNTER: I understand. -

Mr. CLANCEY. And so we—— -

Mr. HUNTER: And Iraq'is-also a customer.

Mr. CLaNCEY. We do not service Iragq..

Mr. HUNTER. Oh, you don’t service: Iraq? - Lo

Mr. CLANCEY. We do only from the Food For 011———

Mr. HUNTER. Okay: :

Mr. CLANCEY [contlnu.lng] Approved by NATO and some of the~
vessels have carried food out in return for: 011

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. Libya? -

Mr. CLANCEY. A feeder that goes into L1bya, yes '

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. Sudan?

Mr. CLANCEY: I do not:believe so.

Mr. HUNTER. OKay. ‘

Mr. CLaNCEY. We may, on a spot basls serve the Sudan '

Mr. HUNTER. ‘Well; let me ask you this- .question: The" eXample
that Mr. Keegan raised where he said that at one point your feeder:
service was, in some way, not able to deliver a service to Iran, and
the American citizen was asked to handle that particular run. And
they refused to.do it.

Is that the essence of what you sa1d Mr. Keegan"

Mr. KEEGAN. That is correct, sir. o

Mr. HUNTER. Is that accurate? : :

Mr. CLaNCEY. Well, what happens—you have a network——

Mr. HUNTER. I understand. ‘

Mr. CLANCEY-[continuing]. Of 400 shlps—— ‘

Mr. HUNTER. It sounds very, I mean, it sounds. very reallstlc

Mr. CLANCEY. You have a:27 to 28 year old person looking at the
network at two o’clock in the morning, and he finds that he does
not have an-asset-that has a mechanical problem ‘or does not -have
the ability to lift—it does not have empty equlpment——and he sub-
st1tuted a vessel in the network that is close by.

- But it is-also true the minute the issue-was'raised 1t d1d not hap-
pen. The vessel was unloaded and it went on its way.- ‘

Mr. HUNTER, Okay. Well, now; Mr. Keegan said that the Amer-
ican citizen refused to do 1t Is that——whlch came ﬁrst the chicken:
or the egg, here?

Mr. CLANCEY. No, I th1nk what happened is the operator-——qt
might have been the captain—said, “We are not going to-do this.”
And the 27-year-old who, I do not know where he is.er what he is;
but I know how we run the network, he said, “Well, I am sorry.
Unload the vessel and go on your way, > not. knowing that he was
not forcing them.to do it. [ T U :
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.Mr. HUNTER. I understand.:He :was mot laoking:at it—at, the po—‘
litical aspect or the sensitivity of this! He samply sald—-v—»
Mr..CraNeEy. Hé probably said~—si: i
g Mr. HUNTER : [contmumg:] Cab humber three 1s close to

treet. REVRE P T e

. Mr.-CLANCEY. Exactly. : : ‘ ‘ ;

Mr. HUNTER. I ain going to send cab number three to take cab;
number . two’s place. B po

But Mr. Keegan, 1s—Just on this p01nt because thls is an 1mpor-,
tant" point—is: that 'your understanding that basicallythis: was a
consensual thing by the parent company?:Or was there.a refiisal.
by the American citizen to do it first amd:then:an acqmescence to
that decision by the parent company? How was it?.~ - -

Mr. KEEGAN. We have. a:communication:log-of:it; ‘and: the‘captaln
came to the home office in Charlotte, asked if:the' could-w.what was
the plrocedure We sa1d “You cannot serve Iran It } “a~U S ﬂag
vessel.” ‘ i

ll\{Ir HUNTER So he went back to the Amelzlcan c1t1zen, 1f you
wi g R TN

Mr. KEEGAN Correct Yes 3 ;

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. Now, I guess my uestlon is; then, Aif the
American citizen had not been there;; woul y“ou have then sent the
ship to Iran?

Mr. CLANCEY. Since then, we have: put in pollcy and procedures
to prevent this. But I will not deny that, with 10,000.0r 14,000 €m-
ployees, someone ‘does not make a ‘mistake once in‘a while; -

Mr; HUNTER. Well I am not talkmg about a mlstake I ar talk-
ing about policy. :

. Mr. CLANCEY. Pohcy is we would never do that :

. Mr. HUNTER. As-a matter of policy you would- not :use an Amer:
ican ship that is dedicated in the MSP program to this line? -

Mr. CLANCEY. Absolutely not. And tll‘)us is the only 1nc1dent that
I have ever heard of that in my entire career. : i

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. ) g ‘

Well, you know, 1 mean; these thnngs happen I mean I.can’ re-
member in Vietnam, what I thought was a tragic situation -of the
American soldiers dy1ng in-Vietnam :and: ‘our: clogest ally, Great
Britain, wasshipping supplies into Haiphong harber. They did not,
as Mohammad AE say, t Ilr)ey drd not have any quarrel w1th those
Vietcong. .

And-so those thmgs hap en. And the second snmlar tragedy, I‘
thought, was when: we hadp the attack.at the. Gulf:of Seedra:iwith
Mr. Kadafi and France would not let-us:over-fly. their-territory, our.
great ally; France, with Lafayette’s picture adorning our -House" "of
Representatives chamibers—our closest :ally; at-one time. .+ v

d I remember being: on !British ‘Broadeasting - Corporatlon
(BBC) television: and: thanking the{British people for lettingius fly:
out of Heathrow to make the strike. And the commentator inform-
ing me that they: had just taken a poll and thie majority of the Brit-
ish people were against it-and it was Maggie Thatcher on her own
who lét us fly .out of Heathrow.. ' .- o

So- sometimes: well-meaning. people, who are: strong alhes ﬁnd?
themselves: glaced in-pasitions where they cannot accommodate two'
friends. And so my point was, simply, that you.have—you are a:
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business with: a number of-clients; somte ‘af- whom have dwergent
interests. That is a difficult pesition:to be:in. +: e

You have compartmentahze?d thoseinterests, I thmk fa1rly eﬁ'ec-
tively. ‘At least that is ithé: essence of your: testimony:: And I do not
think there has'been: any; except for this ons mistake that has been
pointed out, I have not seen a lot of ewdenee that those compart-
ments have been pierced.”

On the other hand, there is a pretty strong reason, and philo-
sophical reason and policy reasoh, for having this American owner-
ship requirement. I think you would agrée ‘with that. And if you
look at the history of America’s conflict and engagements-and the
interests that serve as a backdrop to- those engagements, like the
example I"gave you vnth Vietnam with ‘our close allies’ delivering
war supphes to our enemies to kill Americans on the battlefield—
there was a reason for having a loyilty‘requirement, if you will—
citizenship requirement with the sh1ps that attend Ame‘mca,n 1nter-f
ests in these theatres. = -

So my mnext question to you would simply be this—and that is
this: you are dealing with a lot of motiey here. You have mentioned
that you go before your board’ wlth a request to bu11d ships that
cost——- , y

‘Mr. CLANCEY. Oh, I will, o

Mr. HUNTER Icontlnulng] Sixty million dollars, $80 m1111on, $100
million. The amount of money that you are pay1ng, the expense of
so-called m1dd1emen—r1ght?—the American company—I am trying
to et a fix on that. And I see it at somewhere around $8. million

10 million a year. . Now, is that in the ballﬁar for America?

Mr CLANCEY. It is probably a bit higher, but I;do ‘not have the
exact number. But a couple of points: One, the Department of De-
fense knows we serve those countries. And if they asked us to stop,
we would. .

Two, it is the money, one, but also the ab111ty to rup an eﬁic1ent
system. And you have just heard USSMI, Mr. Keegan, you know,
have some fairly harsh statements about us, We are their cus-
tomer, their only customer, All of the funds into their company are
ours and all the funds out. And.it is.the ability to build brand new
vesgels, Mr. Chairman, and be able to operate them themselves. ;

.Mr., HUNTER. But that is the point F am getting -at. If you are
deahng with $60 million, $80 million, to operate the vessels——

Mr. CLANCEY. Teo. bulld a vessel. . ..

Mr. HUNTER [continuing]. To bu11d a vessel you are talklng_,
about an anpuale expendifure, or. burden, if you w111 on Mgersk in
terms of maintaining.the: ¢ontractual. relatlonshrp w1th an: Amer-
ican citizen, so-called m1ddleman company,” of around $10 million
a year.

Now, it has been held- out that that $10 nulhon makes this a
very, very difficult thing to do. And one reflects that that is not a
lot of money. If you loek at the totality 'of the MSP program, which
is i$198 million, and 1f we increase it, it would be well above $200*
million. -

And: so L wou.ld ask myself the quest10n—-mhaybe, I would ask
you—~would you take:yes for:an-answer? That is, if it.ecould be prov-
en to you that the entire cost of maintaining‘:an American citizen
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in direct charge of this program—iet’s-say it was:$8 million: to $10
million was passed through—-would you accept:that? .=~

And my intuition is it- goes beyond:that.. The money is not that—
because that is;mot an inordinate amount of money when you:are
looking at the cost.of the ships and the enormity .of bhe operatmn

‘Mr. CLANCEY. Well, Mr, Chairman, today—-—

Mr. HUNTER. It does not look like this is a back-breaker I guess,
is what I am telling you... . ::

Mr. CLANCEY. Today, for an- example, in the, Atlantlc, our Amer-
ican flag fleet. loses money for. the corporation. It is a sign. of the
times, but it.is also t,he cost of the operation.

And so $10 million is a lot to us because we do need to. pa for
the ships: And I need to demonstrate to the people, the sharehold-
ers, that their investment, over;the course of 15 or 16 years, will
return something . above_the . cost of cap1tal or we will s1mp ly JU$t
go out of existence. \

Mr. HUNTER. Well, now, let me ask you th1s, further then ou
have, if you are paying $10. million a year, is it your position that
all of that is, basically, monies that you. would not have to spend?

You would not agree to the proposition that no matter who did
it, whether you, even if you hadp gack in-house, the American citi-
zens are providing some service, doing some fraining, doing some
administration that you are going to have to pay, whether you pay
it or they pay it. So are you maintaining to your shareholders that
you could actually retrieve the entire $10 million’ a year?

Mr. CLANCEY. KI '

Mr. HUNTER. How much of that' do you think you could retrleve
in terms of dollars, bottom line?

Mr. CLANCEY. Maybe 75 to 80 percent——~——

' Mr. HUNTER, Okay. So, maybe—— e

Mr. CLANCEY [continuing]. Or more. o o

Mr. HUNTER [contmumg] Seven point ﬁve mllllon dollars or 80—
if it is $10 million?

Mr. CLANCEY, Ballpark

Mr. HUNTER. But you do not know how much 1t is?

“Mr. CLANCEY. I think that, you know, that i is, as a ballpark that
is pretty close. I do not have the exact nuniber : :

Mr. HUNTER. Well, it is kind of unusual that if this burden is
such a difficult thing that-you are testifying’ here today and you do
not know exactly what it is. I mean, it—- ‘

Mr. CLaNCEY. Well, we know what the mformatmn we have been
provided. In fact, there is a ¢ourt case we have wori and we- are
waiting ‘for the. documenits so we know exactly how- much Waste "us
1nvolved; It:eould be significantly above$10: milhon

- Mr..HUNTER: Why did you:negotiate that?

Mr. CLANCEY. I did not. But I inherited it.

Mr. HUNTER. Well, but: I' guess my question:is.if you th1nk 75
percent of it is not Just1fied by the labors involveds—i:0 -

gllr CLANCEY. Beécause of the synergles we could brmg to the
table. v ,
Mr. HUNTER. Well the quest1on is why d1d you agree to pay
omebody——what"—-—four times as much as:you think the serviee'is
worth? Yéu: could—I: was’ mentioning—I:am: sure you have a-lot of
ex-congressmen out there would be, you know, want to~—-— :
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Mr.. CLANCEY.They certainly would-————-

Mr. HUNTER [contmumg] And they would take half the proﬁt
[Laughter.]

Mr. CLANCEY. Every day we - negot1ate comtracts wrth QUL large
customers, Wal»Mart, Toyota and Gﬁneral Electnc ;

Mr; HUNTER.: Yes.; :

Mr. CLANCEY. When it 1s not rlght we. sit down and renegotlate

Mr. HUNTER. Yes. ' R ST

‘Mr. CLANCEY. And they are Stl].].r our customers Iy g

Mr. HUNTER. Well, have.you sat down to renegotiate here" ; ;

Mr: CLANCEY. We have beentotally. unsuccessful, iMr, Chalrman

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. But at some point, somebody in_ your shop,
without a gun to their head,. sat down,and negotiated . these con-
tracts.
hMr CLANCEY. The contract was negotiated, correct 1 do not deny
that,.

Mr. HUNTER. Well, you see, that ig another : roblem that T would
have, as chairman of the comm1ttee, if you think the real cost of
this is around $2.5 million, or the real substantiated. costs, and '
that anything above that should be credited as profit, if you will.

So you are talking about. maybe a $4 million or $4.5 million pro-
gram, but it is a $10 m1111on program because your negotnators paid .
too much. The question ‘becomes should we; in this padel, change
the U.S. law with. respect to the citizenship re« juirenients, which
have a philosophical and p011cy substantive base pcause you folks
made a terrible deal and we need to unfasten you, from 1t‘?

Mr. CLANCEY. My response would be put yourself in’ my position
in front of my board. We are the largest: operatOr of U 8. ﬂagshlps
We have 43 percent of the lift of MSP. P

Mr. HUNTER. I hear you. oo e

Mr. CLANCEY. We have 3 top-secret clearance ‘The' Department
of Transportation, the Department’ of Defenfe and TRANSCOM '
have told us they like' what we sre domg he support the thange!
And, by the way,'I want to recapitahze that nsmesé but- they do
not trust us.

Mr. HUNTER. Well, I do not think that ig the essence of Amencan
requirements, American ownership requirements. I mean,"l do not
think when we ask for American crews’ we’ ‘are saying' to a11 other
citizens of the world, “We do not trust you.” .

T think we are s1mply saymg ‘that we‘know that we are gomg to
put—that nations' are placed, as’the ‘examples' I gave you with
Great Britain supplying our enemies during a conflict because they
did not have a quarrel with them—that foreign: policy issues some-
times put nations and:their policies ifi conflict with each other. And
tlf}?tfls not something people should be blamed for. But 1t 15"a fact
of life

~And 8o, to maintain-a consistency :with Amencan purpose and
American foreign policy, we have requested American:ownership. -

So I do not think we are calling you a name And you know
something else‘is the:fact that you a,re«—-— IR Do n

Mr. CLANCEY. No;you:are not, = .

Mr. HUNTER~ [contmmng] And T got my note that Mr Taylor 18
next: 1 bet he even wants to say something:: i 4

Sé6, Gene, Liapologize for menologuing: herex R ST
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But one reason we have had these requirements in'is because we
have always'been -afraid :of being at:.the point where:we' are held
hostage—where we have to do something—where an interest that.
is not owned by Americans, basically, has us in-a tight spot.

As you go down the litany of'reliances that we have now: on your
foreign corporation—I mean, what is not so subtly W‘}nspered in oUr
ear is, “Maersk is the bnly game in town.” -

And suddenly you realize that this pos1t1on—that we always told
ourselves we would never be ir,”where we had no options, whetre
we had no'alternatives—is almost here. So maybe we are not:doing
ourselves ‘a’ service by further promoting that where we get in’deep-
er and deeper because we cannot-afford to live without you. And
at some point we do ot have' the options that I think a free fore1gn
policy would require. ) .

‘Mr. CLANCEY. If I may, just~—0

Mr. HUNTER. Sure.

"Mr. CLANCEY [continuing]. Mr. Cha1rman MLL, which is the .
governing company of these assets is chaired by a ret1red threé-
star admiral’ r N , ,

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. =~ ' "‘

‘Mr. CLANCEY. On the board is another three-star officer{ a re-
tired chairman of IBM and an ex-ambassador of the Ul;uf;edJ atesf .
and myself and employees of the company. They would do nothing,
at any time, that would be not in'the interest’ of this country VR

‘Mr. HUNTER Well, let me just’ answer. you, And then I have got’
to move on to Mr, Taylor.

n Amgricans were being k}lled on the battlefield in Vletnamh
and British shipping companies'were moving supplies to our adver-
saries—the North Vietnamese communists, who were. lulllng those
Americans on the battlefield—there were,. undoubtedly, in . these
corporate memberships re ired .admirals and: generals. who_had, .
fought side-by-side . with, GIs. 1 in World. War 11, who,. nonetheless,,,
found themselves bound. by circumstance in what I am sure, for-,-,
them, was a very ‘uncomfortable situation. N

Nonetheless Mr. Clancey, they executed.

‘Mr. Taylor.

Mr. TAYLOR, Thank you, Mr Chaarman L

And, you know, I used to joke that Neil Abercromb1e and I were ,
twins, separated at. birth; but maybe ‘we were- triplets. [Laughter]

We would be honored to have you in:that numbper,.. - -

Well, I enjoyed listening to what all of you gentlemen had to say.

But, Mr. Alario, a, eouple of things;:you said got my attention.
One: of them, particularly in light of the.reeent: move by Stanley
Tool Gorporation -and several other companies, highly. publ1c1zed ;
their home offices twice. o

I-heard. you say that you felt like the tax laws. favored fore1gn
ownership.: Could you be a bmt more speclﬁc 1n that?

‘Mr.  ALARIO: Yes, sir; o :

And this might reflect a l1ttle b1t bn Mr Clanceys statement
about the reliability of people who woulds:typically, be considerdd
allies- or expedted-fo promote the iU.B. national:interests. Wie hdve
an example, right now, that:bne:of the largest:drilling tompamies:
have decided, like Stanley, tos:dorinversion«which swould cause this

;,.
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American: company to reregister in Bermuda :and become-a foreign
corporation, if you will, a:docamented foreign citizen. . :

That corporation owns a fleet of U.S. flag Jones Act vessels that
are presently engaged in the offshore out of continental shelf, min-
eral and oil:support services: Typically, by going:-to Bermuda and
becoming a foreign corporation; that: company would "have béen
obliged-to sell that servicei or.that lme or' that ﬂeet to U S. Sectlon
2 citizens. i

‘But by use of the loopholes that have been developmg since 1996
either through lax writing in the legislative and regulatory: areas,-'
that company, instead, now will have a favored tax position, which
is very clear under: the 1nvers1on rules, because Gongress is’ 1nves-
tigating that type of thing. - ‘

‘But, in the meantime; to add 1nsu.1t to 1nJury, as' T have in my
formal notes that T have submltted we will be, ironically, in‘a posi-
tion of helping this ‘company to erode the:Jones' Act by allowing
them, through manipulation of some of the regulatlons—for in-
stance, forming what I call an artificial leasing company under ‘the
leasmg provision act of the Coast Guard Authorization Bill of 1996,
they are going to do all of the technical, mechanical things that
qualify them on paper as a documented citizen.

And we'can say that, well; this does not relate to that, but that,
in 1996, was not an option either. But it has become, now, a door‘
through which' foreign-controlled corporations are ﬁnding ‘ways to.
compete with other Section 2 citizens. And they do hot pay the
taxes. And they do not have to meet the same rules.

So I do not know whether I have answered your "question, Mr:
Taylor, but the fact is that this company will be a Bermudan cor-
poration, free of a lot of-—unless Congress does something, obvi-
ously, through the inversion—and will have a tax advantage over
the U.S. companies that are competing with them.

Mr. TAYLOR. Mr. Alario, if you would, I would be very 1nterested'
in you documenting that.

Mr. ALARIO. Yes, sir, I would be happy to ‘ ‘

Mr. TAYLOR. In particular, if you give me several examples of.
folks who have chosen to keep their corporate headquarters in-
America and the additional costs incurred of them staying in Amer-
ica. Or to put it another way, the relative advantage that some-
one—that the company who is trying to invert Would gain, versus
the ones who stay. here.

Mr. ALARIO. I will be happy to try to do that. I am sure that my
one-man staff will be delighted when I get back—— _

[Laughter.] ,

And tell him, I am delegatmg No, I will be happy to do that

Mr. TAYLOR. Those companies that——

Mr. ALARIO. We have done this.

Mr. TAYLOR [continuing]. Choose to stay in the states who would
be more than happy to provide some——

Mr. ALARIO. Oh, yes. . . g

Mr. TAYLOR [contlnumg] Of the 1nformat10n for you

Mr. ALARIO. No question.-And we ‘have done some work: on this.

[The information referred to can be found in the Appendlx begin-
ning on page 109.]
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::Mr: HUNTER. And‘Mr. Taylor, Rusty: informs ‘me that-is a:Coast
Guard regulatlon Alnd ‘he-is ngmgfto» get a. llttle work up fork.
yDu—-v—-—*- ; ) TS

:Mr. TAYLOR.. Oka +

+Mr.-HUNTER [eontmumg] Ahd fqr tne on that backgmund T

:Mr, TAYLOR::I:am; curious toropen.this:up.to the panel. Of: those'
ships:that we are paying: this subsidy to; how many:of them: remam‘;
Section 2 ships? Any of them? 5

:Mr: JOHNSENMer~ am the lone fellow u,p here wﬂ;h Aa Sectlon
2. We have seven: :. - Cofa :

- Mr. TAYLOR:-So the other 38 or so-d—-—:- w ;

Mr. JOHNSEN: No,: sir—they are; all. Soctlon 2 operated shlps

Mr. TAYLOR. Well, that is true because ou. are—— .

Mr.,.JOHNSEN. ‘The ownership. of the ships and. the Qperatlon pf
Waterman and Gentral; Gulf .are ‘one;, We .are QSeg:t;on 2. This .gen~;
“tleman here has a Segtlon 2. beeause ‘he has, them, @re oated—v—

‘Mr, KEEGAN, L am—: +, . )

Mr, JOHNSEN,,. Yes. They & are boated int
Sealand. And then th¢ other one~— ,\

Mr. TAYLOR. But in_ reahty, Mr Keegan—e— o . ,

" Mr. KEEGAN. Yes, sir? .

Mr. TAYLOR: In. reallty, you are owned by, Seaiand Whlqh is docu-
mented, correqt ;

Mr. KEE? The shlps are
ly,l\%/lr or.

£ are owned by

fih

ned by ﬁnancl,al 1nst1tqt10ns" ‘m s tr

AYL()‘R 1 am trymg',
there are any pure—-— .
r. HUNTER. Mr. Taylor,
you may want to find out” whe
does not agree ‘with that.
Mr. CLANCEY. Chin T just s?eak for a ‘mornent to the APL, situa-
tloal? In that 81tuat10n dll of the ‘ships’ are owned ’by APL entlty’
and-——

Mr. TAYLOR. Who owns APL entities? : ‘

Mr. CLANCEY. APL is part of the NOL"gra .Pz whléh is a pubh,cly
listed company' on the Singapore. Exchange 30it is a big company ,
The APL operations are, by and large, in California. *° K

Mr. TAYLOR. Getting’ back 'to my question, T guess we' have a lit-
tle shell gamé going ‘on hére. Is there aﬁyth“ng 'Teft that is a pure-
Section 2’ American-owned ship’ where the corporation that owng
them, and if there is a corporatlon that Owns; that fcorporatlon is’
also American?

Mr. JOHNSEN. Well, our company-is headquartered in New Orler
ans, U.S., c1t1zen-owned 100 percent. And Central Gulf and Water-
man are the two. ‘companies:’ And ‘we operate outside of the MSP.
We also have other ships; we have a total of 17U S ﬂagships that
are U.S. owned, U.S. operated.

Mr. TAYLOR. So, of the- approxlmately 45 that we say belong to
the pr fram only seven—— :

OHNSEN. Well, there are 47 ShlpS in the current program
We have seven:of those: 47, so- there "are 40 ships: - And- Overseas
Shipholding Group:(OS@G) iz a {U:8. citizen company. It-has:one;, &o
that s eight. The First American Bulk Cerrier Corporation (FAia
has two, so that is 10.

get k ack to my ong:tnal questlon If

,7 ey is shakmg ];us head, ‘So.
happened here. Mr. Clancey
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So. if- my memiory is:correct; that puts you at' around 30 that
would be—and I do not know whether that accurate, but 30 would
be through the intermediary of the APL--and the: Sealand
bareboating their ships to these two Section 2 companies.:

Mr. TAYLOR. What disadvantages, if any, does.that put you m?

Mr. JOHNSEN, What disadvantage does that—— -

Mr. TAYLOR. I mean financial-wise, reguldtion-wise, is there any-
thing that your board of directors—what are their arguments, if
any, that they come to you with and say, “You know, we need to
do hlg’e those other guys. We need to just become documentéd citi-
zens”?

Mr. JOHNSEN. In the first. lnstance, my: fam1ly is the ma_]or share-'
holders.: So my board is my brother and my two sons.

Mr. TAYLOR. Okay. So at Thanksgiving—— :

Mr. JOHNSEN, So if they give me hell, it is because of them. But
I would tell you that ;what we need, as a U.S. Section 2 company—
we need the Maritime Security Progra'm to continue. And when we
saw the existence of what has been approved by our government
and we found that:-we had an existence—and, by the way, in:the
current law; the documentary citizen is already in the current
law—when we saw what was already committed, we compromised
and said, “Let’s hold it to that and go back to Sectlon 2 ? And that
is in this proposal.

In other words, I am suggestmg, as a Sectlon 2 wc1t1zen, in order
to compromise where we are, let us go forward with the ships that
APL and Sealand have in their—let’s grandfather those, -but just
do not expand it.

Mr. TAYLOR. Mr. Johnsen, with all due respect, I do not feel like
you answered my question.

What are the pressures, within your four family member board
of directors, to become a documented citizen? C

Mr. JOHNSEN We have no pressure.:

Mr. TAYLOR. You do not feel like you have any"

Mr. JOHNSEN. No, sir. '

Mr. TAYLOR. There are no: adva.ntages for your famlly to do that?

Mr. JOHNSEN. No.

Mr. TAYLOR. I very much follow Mr. Alanos argument, and and
I have watched this, and there was stuff that happened before I
even got here. But I do feel like there has been a seduction, by
degrees—— . ‘

Mr. JOHNSEN. Well, let me—— ..

Mr. TAYLOR [continuing]. A little exemption here, another one
over there, one over there And you wake up and suddenly, it is no
longer——

Mr. JOHNSEN. But let me——

Mr. TAYLOR [continuing]. To your advantage to be an American
citizen and own these shlps And I do.not want to see that happen
anymore. .

Mr. JOHNSEN. I agree with you. - -

But let. me make: this observation, one:of the thlngs, as a Section
2 citizen, that we find.is, unfortunately, the:forgetfulness of our
government in respect to our conmipanies. Because we: are faced with:
various costs, taxes, seamen are that go with our ships, our own
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corporate taxes:; And:we do not have accelerated depreclatlon any-
more because that was changed.

=-Yet, -our foreign compétition has all of that.. And ‘as:a result of
. that, if 1 were. pressured by just some third party shareholder, I
mght have pressure. But I am ‘an Amerlcan c1t1zen and I want 'to
‘have.our ships Section 2.: -

~ Mr."TAYLOR. Okay. Mr. Johnsen thank goodness thls is‘a hear-
ing. and not a markup for a b111 Would you document those addl-:
tional costs? . : L

‘Mr. JOHNSEN. Sure. = ' '

Mr. TAYLOR. Because Just 11ke I asked Mr. Alario, I am trymg
-to educate my-—1I know my end-game. My:end game ‘is 1 want ‘to
- gee a -strong Jones Act. I know my: end game is T would much pzre-'

fer to see it as pure Section.2.

We also see.what the: other énd game 1s and that is to «at some
point, make ‘the whole ‘program available to- d()cumented citizens.
Somebody is pushing this. So:I need your help and’ My, Alario’s:
help in making the committee aware:d¢f what are the unintended-
consequences; not only in your-industry, but in-the entire Jones Act
industry for American shipbuilding, for: our inland -waterways; we:
need to' know what are: the unmtended consequences 1f we: Iet thatL
happen. % Y RN ;

Mr. JOHNSEN. I would be glad to : :

Mr. TAYLOR.: That:is-what-I am gomg for, and that 1s why I
would like your information to help me make that case : :

Mr. JOHNSEN. Glad to do it. ‘ :

Mr. TAYLOR. Okay.

[The information referred to can be found in the Append1x begln-
ning on page 109.]

Mr. Chairman, I yield back. ‘

Mr. HUNTER. Well thank you Mr Taylor And you have taken
your time and Mr. Abercrombles time, 1f he comes m [Laughter]

Mr. Saxton.

Mr. SAXTON. Mr. Clancey, yesterday, in my office in a very short
meeting, you indicated that General Handy favors your ‘position
relative. to Section 2. And you 1nd1cated that agaln today. And I do
not doubt that he does.

But let me ask—and 1: have not had a chance to talk to him: T’
told you I would—— :

Mr. CLANCEY. Okay.

Mr. SAXTON. And I have not had a chance to do that, yet. But
tell the committee members, I mean why it is that General Handy
favors your position. :

Mr. CLANCEY. He looks out on the world a troubled world today,'
and he needs lift support. And he knows ‘because he has been
gtaffed by his people; that in order to get it from point A to point
B, you need ‘terminals; you.need ‘information technology, you need
thousands of people spread all over the globe.

I mean, if it happens to be in Southeast ‘Asia or in-the Middle
East at the same. time, you:need to have:-a:company that can:re-
spond: by just breaking'its system sup;:working’ with ‘someone: like
APL and working:it:se: we can be there in 12 to-24 hours. We have
the ability to deliver it through difficult geographies. ' :
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- We certainly would enter the theatre of war, if there was a place

we could put a ship in. And we have worked very closely: with him:
with planning what we would do in ‘contingencies' and responding
to their nieeds whetever they: are on:the ‘globe. And, you: know, he
has just spent a lot of t1me looklng at 1t and so. have h’lS prede-
cessors.

Mr. SAXTON. So it glves you a level of ﬂex1bﬂrty that you feel you
do not currently have?:

Mr. CLANCEY. No, we have the ﬂex1b111ty and we are' wﬂllng to
offer it to the: government ‘but: what ‘we have said is that'on one
hand, we can operate: MSP vessels under the ‘existing law. We can
operate top secret ships. We would like to be ‘able to: ope“rate ‘the
balance ‘of our fleet as one company. And we think that it is the
most efficient. And: I think that history has demonstrated-—albeit,
we make one mistake ‘and’I wﬂl take ‘the bl ame for 1t—~that we
have been responsive and We have béen 'loyal

Mr, SaxToN. Okay. I am trying to—so you have ships’ that you:
cannot currently use in this-—

Mr. CLANCEY. We can use: them but we are getting to the point
in time we have to re1nvest ~

We also feel that it is inefficient for someone that is operatlng
ships for the government on one hand and the other makes a tele-
phone call and says turn left or turn right. We think it would be
much more efficient if we could just operate the ships ourselves.

I mean, it is our cap1ta1 it is our eqmbment it is our terminals
and we feel it is more eﬁiclent and more responswe if we could ¢ op-
erate it. .

It is slmllar ‘to_anyone’ bmldmg somet’hl % and saying, “By the
way, I am not allowed to operate that, so I will let .my neighbor
buy the truck and when T want to use it, T will tell. them which
way to go.” A lot simpler to buy the truck yourself and drive it
down the street. i «

Mr. SAXTON. Mr. Keegan, what is your take on—~i—

Mr. KEEGAN. Well, you know, the MSP program is there for con-
trol during national emergencies with U.S. citizens. And as I stated
in my statement, it is there.

But the company Mr. Clancey. represents, Maersk Line, he talks
about control anﬁ control ,over his ships, but in their fleet, they
have 307 vessels, And 200 are, under charter and 107 are owned
So they have 200,.vessels which they -do not ‘directly control,,just
like the 19 that we operate. .

So for their foreign flag fleet, you know they own and charter
in, and the American flag fleet, they charter in. So it is not some-
th1ng, you know, totally. out of their day-to-day way that they do
business.

But 1 think we are: Imssl g the point here, in some degree; in
some of the testimony that MSP is-a law that was passed for a rea-
son. And it is worked very well. And it has to do with control .dur-:
ing national—during contingencies. And those: dedisions. on where
the ships go'and when made by the Department of Defense to. the
Section 2 operator, those decisions are made in the U.S;. : . o

I do not know where: the decisions are made in APL in- S1n apore
or.-Maersk in Copenhagen. But I know where the :decisions for oux.
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ships are. They-are made mght here in the U S and the shxps W111
go when they are asked. o ;

‘Mr. CLANCEY: Congressman" L 't":

~Mr. SAXTON. ‘What kmd of dec1s1ens--we WLH get nght backy
you, Mr. Clancey. - T

What kind of dec1s1ons are you concemed that m1ght occur 1f the
decisions-are not made here in the U.S.? ;

Mr. KEEGAN. Well, you know, let’s say there is a conﬂlct in Chlna
and we.are.involved, And the U:S. Government says, “Okay, gentle-
men,; you: American companies. ;withdraw from . China,t:Maersk is.
the. largest builder .of .ships. in, China,. ngxt; to the, Chlnese They.
have tremendous investments. As they said before, they are a: glob-.
al company. If they were asked to moyve from China, I do not know:
what; the angwer would be; as.a Dan,lsh corporation. .

. And that is, I think; why the MsSP [Fro ram, was- llmlted to U S.
citizens and U.S. control. There.is no contlngenoy, you know,
if the flare goes up, we go o

Mr. SAXTON. And you would make the dec1s19n,to make them
move out.of China? .

Mr. KEEGAN. No, sir. I’ would make the dec1smn_ 1t d ploy z%y
ships where. the. De}iartment of Defense wanted them, deploye
our captain, we would say, “Hey, istan, rec :

SAXTON Mr Clancey, you vya.nte to'say sometlung a mmute

Mr CEY e ust “happ en, o have beer ,,gwen
TRANSC M’s ppsltion on th 1s Somew atwponcerned as to whether
such an expanded waiver would impair U TRANSCOM’S access
to the vessels in the time of crisig, In fact, our review of the appro-
priate statutes suggest that the United States’ would Yef a’m ‘signifi-
cant. powers l\t}[ 0 ‘obtain ,access to the vessels during a.c tlngené
even if the Maritime Security Act wids amended’ perriu fnofe
MLL vessels, or vessels operated by all documeénted,citizens, to be
eligible at the top tier of vessels competing for MSP paymentb P

Mr. SaxToN. Now, 1 am sotry—what are you feadmg from‘?

. Mr, CLANCEY. TRANSCOM’s posmdn ‘

" Mr. SAXTON. And  what gives ' TRANSCOM—‘why does
TRANSCOM feel that way?

Mr. CLANCEY. Because they have worked withius for ‘15 to 20
years They visited our' corporate headquarters ey’ *wsﬂ;ed Nor-
folk. They visit us, we'visit them: Qver ﬁv§ sucteeding Corimand-
ers in Chief (CINC):at TRANSCOM 'have been’ ‘supportive of what
we are trying to do. They know that we brifig a’ flot’thefe 16 the'
table ‘than just ‘the - shlps and 1t is’ the inﬂ'astmeture that allows
them to respond: "

Désert Storm Was a’'perfect example, and what mlght ha'ppen m
the future will demonstrate that once again. :

-And by the way, we are not the largest builder of sh1ps‘1 EChina
Last year we built 20 ships;- Germany, Denmark Talwan, and sev-
eral in China<-five to be exact.-

- Mty SAXTON. MriBowman. (. + = &

Mr. BowmanN. ‘I would justlike to- add to the concept of the netu
work and the infrastructure: I'have a letter hete from the general;’
the Military Traffic: Management: Command; to*APL. It is dated
June:26; :2002.; And: I-will submit ' this: letter:for the record.. But;
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among other things, it sdys;: “The success of our operations;” mean-

ing the military operations, “in:the Afghanistan area would not be

possible W1thout the;level of performance you showed” APL and

Automar, * 1n moving this. sh1pment and others 1nto the theatre of -
operatmns

Now, you: asked earl1er, Mr: Cha:lrman, how d1d we., get 1nto the
theatre of operations. OQur operation: is-a little bit different in that
we went the other way: We went to.Karachi, then our truckers took
the cargo up threugh: the internal of Pakistan, across the moun-
tains and into the delivery zone. It was:the infrastructure of the
ports that we controlled in Karachi—the trucking system that:we
used all the time in the Pakistan area in peace time that enabled
this movement.

And, if Mr. Keegan says, “Well, you;can count on my sa1l1ng my
ship. to Karachi” that is only. half the job. And, in fact, the eas1est
part of the job.

[The 1nformat1on referred to can be found in the Append1x on.
page 103.]. -

Mr. SAXTON. Thank : you, Mr. Chalrman

‘Mr. HUNTER. Yes. Thank you, Mr. Saxton o

~ Actually, Mr.- Johnsen has been sitting- here. next to me makm%
this same.point, that the infrastructure and the terminals and al
of that, .companies, the throughput if you will, of the. goods is part
and parcel to that. .

And. just one questmn before T go to Mr, Allen. Who controls your
term1na1s? You—-=-

Mr. BowMAN. Terminals . throughout the world are controlled in
different mixes. Some we own, some we have long-term contracts
on. And I have heard others say, “Well, we can always refit a ter-
minal.” Not in the middle of an Afghamstan strike, you cannot.

The infrastructure is there—the people are there-—they ‘are on
the ground, ready to serve. They know the locality. That is the d1f-
ference. ; ,

Mr. HUNTER. Okay

Mr. Allen.

" Mr. ALLEN. Thank you, Mr. Chaeran ’

There is a second panel with members of various mar1t1me;
unions coming up to testify. But, before you go, I would like to ask
both groups what your sense is ‘what the impact would 'be on the
unions that are represented in the second panel if we go one way
or another with this.- :

For example, what is the- 1mpact if you have the kind of legisla-
tive compromise proposal that is laid out here? I mean, how would
you analyze the impact on your workforce? Just for: the moment,
leave aside the reliability issues. But if T could ask that of anyone
that wants to comment.

Mr. JOHNSEN. I will take a crack at that, Mr. Allen I th1nk that
the compromise that we are proposing or the greatest consensus
here was an effort to preserve and build on jobs. We understand
the—we, particularly, are the Section 2:company~-had: to be con+
vinced; ourselves, that this would be beneficial for the ent1re 1ndus-

And we have come to the conclusion- that the comprom1se of 11m-
iting the amount of documentary citizens to the existing ones that
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are there and then going back to Section 2 is the best method be-
cause we need investment in new ships.

All of us are in a situation where our ships—we at Waterman
and Central Gulf are in the process, now, of looking for new ships:
And with that, in order for us to move forward with that, as John
Clancey said, each of these pieces are $60 million, $65 million.

If'we are going to go forward, we need this program. We need
to be realistic that what we have now and what the DOD has ac-
cepted, and we think this, for the _point of the unions and for the
general well being of the industry, is the best way to go.: »

Mr. ALLEN. Okay. Thank you. ,

Others?

Mr. Alario.

And then we will’'come back'to Mr. Clancey. .

Mr. ALARIO. T would just like to attempt, again, to segregate the
fact that we are talking on the one hand, appropriately here, about
a particular program which involves a hangful of U.S. built, U.S.
owned ships, despite the fact that they may be U.S. flagged.

We are also interested, in this program, in protecting jobs that
are under the mantle of the maritime unions that are involved in
this hearing.

I call the attention of the panel, again, to the fact that our indus-
try represents over 1,200 vessels, not one, five, 10 or 12, that con-
ceivably could be 1mpacted by legislation which is not “careful to
segregate what happens in this program and what will happen or
fall over into the other areas of maritime operations.

And none of those jobs aboard those 1,200 ships come under the
mantel of maritime unions. It is a non-union, privately owned—
many privately, small-owned corporatmns, which are in a militarily
strategic and a national security zone of outer continental shelf
(OCS) operations in—where over 20 percent of this nation’s oil and
gas is produced.

It is not something that we take lightly, although we have no di-
rect participation in the program, we remind the committee and
the panel that this is something that we have to proceed with very
cautiously. Because it is not accident that our U.S. Merchant Ma-
rine is now redressed to approximately 180 ships, and waning, and

that the Jones Act is under attack from all angles.

And I know that this panel or this committee is not unaware of
that. But it is time, since 1996 and since September the 11th, de-
spite the fact that:there may be a good record of participation. and
cooperation between companies that are presently in this program,
this is a different world—a different time-—and we have to look at
it with a different—in a different light.

Mr. ALLEN. Thank you.

Mr. Clancey.

Mr. CLANCEY. Not only just, you know, your question in terms
of labor—probably approximately- 90 percent of the owners of the
assets in the MSP program support the compromise. And the com-
promise, as we see it, would enhance opportunity for labor. And we
have committed that to them,

Mr. ALLEN. I am sorry, I did not catch that last part. What did
you say?
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Mr. CLANCEY: That the compromise;as we have.presented; by 90
percent of the ownership:of the MSP- ﬂeet Would enhance the: op-
portunities for labor.

Mr. ALLEN. Okay::: b ‘

Mr. Keegan,'I am: lookmg for a note I made on somethmg that
you said. ‘And I am:trying to—I cannot seem to- ﬁnd it. I know 1
made the note. It is here somewhere. .=

But'I guess what I wanted to-askyou was what is your reaction
to the proposal laid out here that would establish an-equal priority
for Section 2 companies and documentation companies, provided
the documentation company had a speclal secunty agreement with
the Department of Defense?

Can you speak to that?:

Mr. KEEGAN. Yes, I can, sir,.

I think T said in my testimony and I said before that the existing
MSP program was ‘well thought out, enacted and I think works
very, very well. I do not see a need for change. I think, you know,
the reasons:-the MSP program was enacted and why it is running.
and: how it is structured works. It maintains the Section: 2 citizen-
ship. It maintains the integrity of the defense call up. And I think
the system, the law—you designed the law; you. 1mp1emented it. I

think it works well. And I say, “Why change it?

Mr. ALLEN. Well, let me ask you, then——

Mr. KEEGAN. Sure.

Mr. ALLEN [continuing]. Why would that system be—why Would
the vessel owners in a system like that be less reliable than'Section
2 citizens? I mean, I heard what you were saying about, you know,
U. Sfc1t1zens making a decision and there is no—I am really prob-
ing for—— . ,

gl{r KEEGAN. Okay.

r. ALLEN [continuing]. What else you can add to that partlcular
answer. :

Mr. KEEGAN. It is my opinion that a forelgn corporation is just
that, a foreign corporation. The interests of that corporation are
governed by-the state it is located in‘or the country it is located
in and its global reach and how that affects its economics. Not true
of the Section 2 citizen. We are based here. Our decisions are made
based on U.S. law. We operate on the U.S. law,

And, you know, I cannot predict the future, but I think the chair-
man said it best. F1ght1ng in Vietnam and our allies,. the British,.
you know, providing service to Halphong I mean, we have seen it
in the Gulf War. We have seen it in the recent Afghamstan conflict.-

I mean was Germany truly on our side? Did we get the over-
flight rights from: Saudi Arabia like ‘we needed? ‘

And, let’s face it, some of these companies, one for example, Den-
mark, is in the European Economic Community (EEC). That has to
be g'ulded by the EEC policy now. And does that mateh with U S.
priorities and U.S. statutes?

I am just saying that it is clear to operate this ﬂeet you need
U.S. citizens to operate it. And I think it works well.

Mr. ALLEN. Mr. Bowman, do you want to respond to that?

Mr. BowMAN. Yes. I would just like to: respond to something Mr.
Keegan said when he said that nothing changed since the MSP en-
actment. Seems to me that is absolutely incorrect. Everything
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changed. When MSP was enacted, all of these companies were
American citizen-owned companies. Sealand was one of the b1ggest .
stron%‘est American companies. ‘

again, completely American owned—all of these compa-
nies—and what else? We all worked for the same companies. These
Section 2 companies were part of the operating entities that were
these strong American companies.

In the interim, both APL and Sealand have been sold and, in- ‘ad-
dition to a number of others, leaving only my friend, Mr. Johnsen
here as the true American citizen.

So everything has .changed of late. And we have to address a
modern world and make some compromises that will protect both
the security of the United States and induce continued availability
of the kind of networks that these two companies run.

Mr. ALLEN. And let me make sure, if'I could—I will come to you
in just a moment, Mr. Johnsen—for Mr. Bowman and Mr. Clancey,
as I understand the heart of your argument, you are saying
have these middlemen that you are paying X number of million
dollars per year. And you ought to, I think in your words, Mr.
Clancey, you would like to operate the ships yourselves so you
would have more money to invest in new ships. And that is, as I
understand it, the heart of your argument.

I want to pnontlze this and make sure I understand where you
are coming from. )

Go ahead.

Mr. CLANCEY. It is money; it is synergies; it is control And it is
the focus on our strategic planning as we: go forward. If we are
going to re-capitalize the fleet and build new technology, we would
like to be able to control it. ‘

Mr. ALLEN. Mr. Bowman.

Mr. BowMaN. I would hate for this to be only about money It
is not only about money. It is about the question of, as Mr. Clancey
said, controlling your own ships. After all, the way the structure
now works, APL and Sealand and the other companies in their po-
sition have to invest in the ships, give them to the Section 2 citi-
zens and then get them back.

What sense does that make when at the same time these same
companies are entrusted by the Department of Defense in their
pre-positioning forces, where both our ships are, where we carry
military equipment ready to go, completely at the. disposal of the
Defense Department and they trust us. It just does not make any
sense.

Mr. ALLEN. Mr. Johnsen.

Mr. JOHNSEN. Mr. Allen, I just wanted to say that we should look
at the existing legislation because we, as Section 2 citizens, saw
that way back in 1996 when there are already documentation citi-
zens that are eligible. They just put a priority system. Priority one
is Assistant Section 2 and if there are no Section 2s, then you go
to documentation.

So, from a practical point of view, what we are talking about,
from my point of view, as a Section 2 citizen, I wanted to try to,
q}viute frankly, narrow it. And I wanted to say, “Okay. We have got
L ese 282 or 30 ships. Let’s grandfather those, but let’s go back to

ection 2.” ;
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That has been: my theory here, because I do not back away from'
the' hesitancy:factor'because I‘do not:mind telling'you about a year
ago I had/the hesitancy. Butrall of these people khhow about it.' But.
I said, “Okay. I have:to look:at reality and where we: are.:And the
U.S. Government has to look at- reality-as to'what has been done.”

So what is the practical solution? Confine it to where 'we are and
then ‘grandfather what: we have,.but then go back to Sectlon 2 c1t1-
zens.

Mr. ALLEN. Okay. All right.

One more question for Mr. Truchan and: Mr: Kee an,

Mr. Bowman and Mr. Clancey were makin the a‘rgument that
our companies are so large that we'have an infrastructure in other
parts of the world that-we count on to:delivet materials that, you
know, where the delivery does. not finish, you know, rlght in the
port. They have transportation terminals. '
. Do you have any response to that argument? That is just an-
open-ended——

Mr. TRUCHAN. Well, under the present arrangements in the
TRANSCOM—the VISA program, in stagé one and two, we use the
infrastructure ‘of, in my case, APL to deliver the products to the
various countries. In - ‘stage three, we become ‘the servant-of the:
United States government. if the United States: government has
another destination for the ship, it is our respon81b111ty to go ahead
and take over that responsibility. .. . o

Mr: ALLEN. . {thmg to-add, Mr. Keegan? -

Mz. KEEGAN es. I think, while some of the larger camers, the
global carriers, have some of their own facilities and lease facilities;
there are many terminals around the world that are common-user
facilities. Companies like ours could go there with-a contract 81gn
up touse those terminals. =~ -

The intermoedal system in the U S., which they claim: is very im-
portant, is not owned: by .them, it is owned by the U.S. railroads.
And-it is-operated by the railroads. And it is available to, you
know, one on—come one, come all, as long as you can pay.

The computer systems that are needed in the systems, you know,
those systems are available in-place today to monitor andrtrack.
And, frankly, our systems would be based in the U.S. where any
of the global carriers, their computer systems:are based on offshore
overseas locations, whether it be Chinaor. Indla or wherever 9! st111
think you have more control there. - :

And I think containers, themselves——-people talk about where are
you going to get the containers. They are available on a spot basis
anywhere in the world from leasing companies. So it is a system
where, you know, you can put that together 1f necessary, ina very, :
very short time if needed.

Mr.-ALLEN. All right, :

Agy response, Mr Clancey, Mr. Bowman" I w111 ~give you the last
wor

Mr. BOWMAN If somethmg happened in the M1ddle East, we 0wn"
the terminal at Algiers. We own the terminal in Oman Our o%wn
people there, we have U.S. citizens there.

Going out on a 24-hour notice and getting a termmal is prepos-
terous. Any terminal in the world—let’s say Kwai Chung in Hong
Kong—1I guess there is ne room. Allof the priority on all of the
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berths is taken. Going out and leasing 50,000 pieces of equipment
and Futtmg it into—a- tracking system in—you would need 5,000
people to track the equipment. You need dispatchers. You need
gate people. You need truck drivers. You need train drivers.

And certainly, the American railroads own the network. But, you
know, it is our flat cars and our intermodal people that dispatch
the trains and pull them back and forth in the United States. They
just make the highway available to us.

Mr. ALLEN. That is fine.

Thank you all ve much——appreclate 1t

Yield back, Mr. Chairman. . -

Mr. HUNTER. Thank you, Mr. Allen :

Just one question here, but it is a $64 000 question for every-
body. Embedded in this so-called compromise is a $2.1 million:to
$3.5 million increase per ship. Why do you get—that is a pretty
substantial increase.

What is your best one-sentence justification for that increase—
other than we all agreed it would be good? [Laughter.]

Mr. JOHNSEN. We are, Mr. Chairman, we are, all of us, compet-
ing day in and day out with foreign competition that have costs
that are materially below the level. They do not have income taxes
to the sailors. They do not have corporate taxes, et cetera.

And I can tell you that the difference, and we do not try to make
it just. The difference is one thing and another, but the difference
between our operating in an American environment and operating
ag?.lmst a competitor is more than that; there is more than $3.5
million

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. So you think it is—one thing Rusty sug-
gested is tax breaks for the crews might help to some degree.

Mr. JOHNSEN. That will help somewhat, yes. A tax break for the
crew will help somewhat, a tax break for the corporations. the Brit-
ish, for instance, have just enacted-a tonnage tax, which has helped
get flags on the stern of the ship with the union jack, you know.

Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Well Mgentlemen, thank you so much. .

Taylor has another question.

Mr TAYLOR. Mr. Clancey, I have a question.

Mr. CLANCEY. Yes, sir?

Mr. TAYLOR. Is Maersk a corporation?

Mr. CLANCEY. Maersk, Inc. Is a corporation. And—

Mr. TAYLOR. Publicly traded?

Mr. CLANCEY [continuing]. AP Moller is a publicly traded com-
pany. It is two separate companies. In Denmark: it is publicly trad-
ed. There is a thin float, about 10 percent,

Mr. TAYLOR. Okay. What would happen if the guys from Hutch-
inson showed up and offered substantlally more money per share
than the present owners?

Mr. CLANCEY. The owner, who owns 90 percent, would say, “How
much do you want for your company?”

Mr. TAYLOR. The. reason I ask that, Mr Clancey, I am aware of
at least—I was very much 1mpressed in a dinner with some Nor-
wegian container ship owners when they talked about, when the;
saw the rise of the fiddler, the fall of Norway that they Shlppe
they basically told all the ships to head for America.
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. But I am also aware, that around 1936, when Franco revolted
against the Spanish Republie, that ‘American oil tankers int'route
to Spain delivered ‘their cargo.to North Africa to help:him instead
of the Spanish government:that paid:for the-+so there i$ihistorical
precedence for guys you are counting on to switch:sides on you, de-
pending on who they think is going'to win-and where the money
is.

I would hate to have our country as vulnerable as. the Repubhc
of Spain was in 1936. ; " S o

I will just leave it at that

Mr. CLANCEY. I am not familiar with: that I Just know where——

Mr. TAYLOR. It is in the history.books. - .

Mr. CLANCEY [gontinuing); The sentiment of thls company is, and
also that Maersk Line, Limited is controlled by Americans. And the
geople from Denmark cannot tell that three-star admiral what to

o r

Mr. BowMAN, That is the problem The- dev11 1s in the detail.

The company that runs the ships are American companies, in.our
case, headquartered in: Delaware, and right here in Washington.
The boards are controlled by these. 1ndependent American citizens.
And even if the ultimate parent took ‘the view that you suggest, it
could not be done, with respect to the American flagships. ,

Mr. HUNTER. How about if the—stockholders, though have the
ultimate vote on this.

Mr. BowMAN. No, the board. In a corporate entlty, the board con-
trols the corporation. And the board, these independent directors
gannot be replaced w1thout the consent of the Department of De-
enge S

Mr. HUNTER. Well .now wait a second

Mr. BowmaN. That is what—— ;

Mr. HUNTER. Wait a second, though. In the corporation, if a ma-
jority of your stockholders want to replace the board can they re-
place them?

Mr. BowMAN. No, because the Department of Defense says ou
may nét replace’ the independent’ directors w1thout the consent of
the Department of Defense. There are other directors that are rep-
resentative of the foreign owner. They can be replaced.

Mr. HUNTER. Well, they can if they want to Jettison the program

“Mr. CLANCEY. What do you mean?

‘Mr.' HUNTER. If you have got a foreign owned: corporation, that
corporation has not for here, for now and forever vested its power
irretrievably in the Un1ted States Department of Defense.

Mr. BowMAN. As long ‘as'it is a defense contract;'I guess.

Mr. HUNTER. Well, precisely.

Mr. BowMAN. Yes.

Mr. HUNTER. -Obviously, if you' have dec1ded to Wlth the
enemy, I think we can presume you have probably bro en the con-
tract'at that point, right? [Laughter.]

Mr. BowMaN. But my p01nt is that it would take a long t1me to:'
get'that done. -

1aMr HUNTER. Okay. We will concur 1t would take a wh11e to do
that

Mr. BowMmaN. Right. P ’

Mr. HUNTER. We have got to go to thls other panel
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. Mr. BowMAN. Yes, sir. e

Mr.. HUNTER. But just one last—one real fast one: here :

Mr. Keegan, do you agree with this idea that there is a lot of
margin in this $10 million, or so, contrdet with Maersk"

Mr. KEEGAN. No:sir, I do not think— -

Mr. HUNTER. Do you think most of it is cost and there is a small
profit, but not a lot?

Mr. KEEGAN. There is a very--there is a small proﬁt And I can
tell you what the profit is, if you would like that.

Mr. HUNTER. Go ahead.

Mr. KEEGAN. But Mr. Clancey would have to waive conﬁdentlal-
ity for me to do that. We have a contract. That is okay?

Mr. CLANCEY. Well, we are waiting for the courts to give us——

Mr. HUNTER. We have got lots of congressmen that want to p1ck
this contract up—extraordinary-congressmen. [Laughter.]

They are waiting anxiously to hear this.

Mr. KEEGAN. It is not—it is $216 per day, per ship. We are paid
to manage those ships, the management fee.

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. So how much of that 1s—how much of the
fee, roughly, in percentage, is profit?

Mr. KEEGaN. That is the profit, $1.5 million if you keep all the
profit. The rest of it is for’ operatlon

Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Mr. KEEGAN. The rest of the money, $7 m11110n is—85 percent
of that, sir, is for salaries.

Mr. HUNTER. So that must be basically, those facts must have
been put out when the initial negot1at1on took place——

Mr. KEEGAN. Sure.

Mr. HUNTER [continuing]. That ended up, that resulted in th1s
agreement.

I take it, if we reauthorize MSP a new agreement, that that
point, by the contracts own terms has to be struck. Is that right?

Mr. CLANCEY. Yes.

Mr. HUNTER. If an MSP is—are you folks prepared to see that
happen, Mr. Keegan?

r. KEEGAN. No, our company would be out of business, sir.

Mr. HUNTER. Well why is that?

Mr. KEEGAN. Well, there is a contract clause that says if a law
c}ﬁanges our company no longer exists. They can operate these
ships

Mr. HUNTER. Well, but what they would have to—but if we kept
the requirement that you have got to have the American citizen,
they would have to-——

Mr. KEeGgaN. That is correct, sir.

Mr. HUNTER. They would have to maintain an Amerlcan citizen.

Mr. CLANCEY. It could be a congressman.

Mr. HUNTER. You could tell Mr. Clancey all those meah thlngs
you said about him do not count. [Laughter.]

I am just kidding, Mr. Keegan. We have got to have a little
humor in this business.

Mr. Clancey, what is your—

Mr. CLANCEY. No, I just said that if that was the case, it could
be an ex-congressman.
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‘Mr. HUNTER: Yes. We have a lot of them waltlng for: thls Job It
is crazy. [Laughter.] +.°

Well, just one last questlbn, Mr Clancey

Mr. GUANCEY. Yes, gir.: ;

- Mr. HUNTER, Just.a hwtorlc note Was' Maersk one of the supph-
ers of North Vietnanm'during:the V1etnam War‘?

Mr. CLANGEY. No. ., -,

Mr. HUNTER. Are, you sure pf tha,t?

Mr. CLANCEY. I was in. V1etnam

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. ... ;.

Mr. CLANCEY. They, were not there

Mr. HUNTER. Well, I was in: Vietnam, too, and T have no 1dea 1f
they were or not. [Laughter 1

But who was—because [ know Bntam was supplylng a lot of ma-
teriel ;at that itime to the North, who was moving that stuff for
them? Do you have any idea? .

Mr. JOHNSEN. I can only tell you that we were there but we
were there with the American flag:-on the sterns, supplymg you
guys over there. And I was 1n two of the s-wars. I was supplymg the
third one.

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. -

Mr. CLANCEY. I do not know..I just know that: they did not——all
I was concerned about was keeping my head down and makmg
sure I ate every two. or three days. - ..~

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. But you ‘were: supplymg the Amerlca.n 51de,
Maersk was? - o

Mr. CLANCEY. Sealand was. -

Mr. HUNTER. Oh, Sealand? : - - : : -

Mr. CLANCEY. Yes. : :

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. - '

Mr. CLANCEY. We were very heavﬂy 1nvoered o

- Mr. HUNTER. What was Maersk—do you know; for a- fact wheth-
er Maersk was ar was not involved in supplymg North Vlétnam—
Maersk, not: Sealand? :

.Mr. CLANCEY I.do'not belleve——I could not.swear to 1t——-—*

Mr. HUNTER. Well, we will find out. g

Mr. CLANCEY. But. mno, they were not. It is Just somethmg that
the company would not do. But if I find somethlng to the contrary,
I will ‘certainly:let you know.

Mr. HUNTER. -Okay. Thank you. -

Well, gentlemen, thank you for: lettlng us: have a good ca.ndld ex-
change That: is the: way we are able to: get information and that
is the American 'way. And it is great to have you all in this panel
and have a good back and forth. ' We appreciate it. :

We are now-going to-get our labor leaders up here, and we will
have them contradict you.

Gentlemen, thank you for. being with us, and we are going to con-
tinue with our hearing.:

And Mr. Sacco, 1 understand you have been——I hope you have
been well briefed by Mr. Turner to prepare you for this-harsh panel
here: We appréciate you being with us, sir;

Mr. Davis, Captain Rodriguez, Mr: McKay, and we look- forward
to hearing your-perspeetive:on MSP.

So Mr. Sacco, the floor is yours, sir.
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STATEMENT OF MR. MICHAEL SACCO, PRESIDENT, SEA-
FARERS’ INTERNATIONAL UNION; MR. RON 'DAVIS, PRESI-
DENT, MARINE ENGINEERS’ BENEFICIAL ASSOCIATION; MR.
MIKE RODRIGUEZ, INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF MAS-
TERS, MATES AND PILOTS AND MR. MICHAEL R. MCKAY, NA-
TIONAL PRESIDENT, AMERICAN MARITIME OFFICERS.

Mr. Sacco. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the panel.

My name is Michael Sacco and I am president of the Seafarers
Internatlonal Union (SIU). And I am pleased to submit this state-
ment on behalf of the American Maritime Officers, the Inter-
national Orgamzatlon of Master, Mates, & Pilots (MMP) the Ma-
rine Engineers’ Benevolent Association and my union, the Sea-
farers International Union of North America.

Our unions represent the American maritime workers emliloyed
aboard U.S. flag commercial vessels, including all the vessels, in-
i:)ludmg all the vessels participating today in the Maritime Securlty

rogram.

On the outset, I want to express my appreciation to you, Mr.
Chairman, and to the members of the panel, for holding this hear-
ing on the Maritime Security Program. This program is critically
important to the workers we represent, and also to our ability to
be able recruit, retain, qualified erican mariners.

Without this program, U.S. flag vessels will leave the American
registry and seafaring personnel will be forced to seek employment
outside the industry. And when that happens, our country will face
a shortage of seafaring personnel, posing a serious risk for the na-
tion.

Our unions believe that the best long-term solution in guarantee-
ing that the United States will have American seafaring personnel
it needs is to develop a larger, more actlve and competitive com-
mercial U.S. flag merchant marine.

We are convinced that this program could with ap Froprlate and
practical changes, serve as an even greater source of employment
for American mariners. Support to a greater degree, American mili-
tary operations overseas and better protect U.S. economic interests
from total domination from foreign-flag vessels and crews.

Thus we believe the Maritime Security Program should be ex-
tended for an additional period of at least 20 years.

This change would help create greater stability within the Amer-‘
ican maritime industry; provide an enormous boost to our outgoing
efforts to recruit and retain men and women for service in the mer-
chant Marine; and will give investors and lending institutions more
confidence to provide funds necessary for the replacement of ves-
sels and the expansion of the U.S. flag fleet.

In addition, the Congress and the administration should capltal-
ize on the initial successes of the maritime program by expanding
the size of the MSP fleet. Not only will a larger militarily-useful
fleet ensure that the Department of Defense will have an even
greater commercial sealift capability at its disposal to meet the sea-
lift manpower and sustain the needs of our armed forces, but it
would also provide a greater, much needed base for peace-time
commercial employment for American mariners.

Furthermore, we believe the annual payment should be increased
and should be subject to annual adjustments to reflect future infla-
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tion.-And we believe that thé Maritime:Becurity. Program should be
amended to:reflect the current-ownership of U.S. flag vessels con-
sistent with, to the fullest extent-practical, the existing priority
system for awardlng operating agreements and the overall inter-
ests of the Department .of Defense.-

We want to emphasize, Mr. Chairman; that under the proposed
changes in citizenship ownership rules that we suggest, the MSP
fleet will continue to be comprised entirely of American-flag ships
with American crews, operated by companies controlled by Ameri-
cans and contractually bound -to- rowde ‘national defense seahft'
shipping for the U.S. military worldwide. . -

These proposed changes would strengthen the. Mantlmte Secunty
Program and help ensure it.is long-term .viability.: We .note :that
representatives of the Department of Defense have repeatedly 1nd1-
cated their:support - for such.changes. - -

In fact, they, too, have indicated that not onxly are they necessary
to the future program, but that these- arrangements have been, and
are, used by the military to’ provide the operation of vessels. per-
form1ng a wide range of defense missions. :

The unions sitting at this-table, look forward to workmg with you
to develop an: expanded: and updated maritime program which will.
;:Ireate a more competltlve and cost-effectlve U.S.-flag commerclal.

eet

Thank you, Mr. Chalrman And we will answer any questlons
that you may have. And I think,Ron——

[The prepared statement of Mr. Sacco, Mr. Dav1s Mr. Rodnguez
and Mr. McKay can be found in‘'the A pendlx on'page 91.] . - .

Mr. HUNTER. Thank you very muc ; Mr. Saaco, for a very fine
statement. ; ‘

Mr. Davis. : : ‘

Mr1 Davis. Thank you, Mr. Cha1rman, and members of thls
pane .

Thank you for holdlng thls hearmg I welcome the o portumty to-
appear before you today on behalf of the men and tﬁe women. of
the Marine Engineers Beneficial Association.: -

Our members serve aboard 40 of the 47 MSP vessels supplymg
international waters today and are an 1ntegral part of our armed
forces national defense sealift capability.”

The authorization of extended MSP, increase in size to 60 ships,
is of vital interest to my unit and to our nation’s economic and m111-
tary security: .

In addition to the points raised in_the joint statement for this
hearing, T want to-emphasize at the outset in my remarks an im-
portant principal in any such program must be that U.S. mariner
jobs, and more specifically, 11censed officers’ jobs;. can not:be.
disenfranchised.

By this, I mean the relationship between unions and the ratio of
vessels must be preserved so that no future program jeopardizes al-
ready proven, highly trained and ready personnel avallable to our
nation.

As the president of the ndtion’s oldest maritime unit, founded in
1875, I am deeply troubled that, since January of this year, I have
seen "12 vessels leave the American flag either ‘to be re-ﬂagged for-
eign or scrapped. :
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~The Marine Engineer’s Beneficial Association (MEBA) officers
served aboard all 12 of these vessels. No doubt my fellow brothers
on this panel have also witnessed the contlnumg loss of ships to
foreign %S or to the scrap yard.

Such a loss of maritime capability is unacceptable for a nation
faced with global challenges and responsibilities. Even more so in
light of September 11 and the ongoing war on terrorism.

Importantly, three of these 12 vessels that once .flew the Amer-
ican flag participated in the MSP program. We are confident that,
with an extended and expanded program to MSP, replacement ton-
nage for these vessels will be brought on line soon, together with
Jobs for sailing members.

The other nine vessels no lon%er sailing under the U.S. flag rep-
resent a deplorable loss that will, most likely, not be met with re-
placement ships, unless a new, expanded program is authorized. In
addition to losing an essential asset in time of national emergency,
ships lost to our flag also represent lost jobs.

The nation’s dwindling pool of highly-trained professional mari-
ners r gresents not only a threat to the well bein, g of my union and
the U.S. maritime industry, but the lack of U.S. maritime man-
power is a direct threat to our national security. These loyal, ready-
to-serve merchant mariners provide reliable crews for our MSP.
ships and other merchant marine vessels in a time of feral coali-
tions and fg lobal uncertainty. Moreover, the same crew base is ex-
pected to fully man the Defense Department’s reserve sealift fleet.

The panel is familiar, I am sure, .of the:role played by the mer-
chant marines serving this nation throughout its history. We have
seen heroic efforts ranging from the Murmansk Run in World War
IT to Korea and Vietnam and to recent emergencies in the Persian
Gulf, the Balkans and at home at the shore side evacuation of
lower Manhattan on September 11.

The Staten Island ferries and New York City fireboats rescuing
victims of that tragedy were crewed by MEBA members, eager to
lend a hand at a moment’s notice.

Just as the merchant marine is the cornerstone of the U.S. mili-
tary’s ability to project power globally, MSP is the cornerstone of
our nation’s maritime policy. Together with the Jones Act and
cargo preference laws, MSP makes up the absolutely essential triad
of maritime policies and programs supporting the U.S. merchant
marine. :

Without action to create an expanded program to MSP, MEBA
risks losing 40 contracted vessels participating in MSP. Without ac-
tion, these vessels will leave the U.S. flag. Without action, the mar-
itime loses more mariners. Without action, America will lose a key
element of military and economic power at a time when there is no
substitute for American leadership. Without action, the day may
come when U.S. troops engaged in combat halfway around the
- world are left vulnera le due to lack of ammunition and supplies
because there are not enough:U.S. ships to service them.

Thank you.

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Davis, appreciate it.

Captain Rodriguez.

Mr1 RobpRriGUEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the
panel.
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I am Captain Mike Rodriguez, executive assistant to: Captain
Tim Brown, president of the Intematlona.l Orgamzatlon of Masters,
Mates & Pilots. :

" Were it not .for. the fact that our union s presently holdmg 1ts
79th conventlon Captain Brown would be here; personally, to.ex-

ress our union’s. support :for the Maritime Security Pregram and
or the changes we believe are necessary to make it work: even bet-
ter for the United States.

On behalf of Captain Brown and the membership of the MMP
I am grateful that this hearing is being held—we are grateful that
this hearing‘is being held so that Congress can gather the informa-
tion it meeds to properly cons1der Maritime Secumty Program reau-
thorization legislation::

- At" the outset; T want to- emphasme that the reauthonzatlon of
the Maritime Secunty Programis extremely important for the mas-:
ters and licensed deck officers represented by the MMP. We rep-
resent licensed officers working aboard 37 of the 47 United States
flag vessels enrolled in the program. As such, the Maritime Secu-
rity Program represents the most mgmﬁcant component of our: U.S.
flag foreign trades commercial fleet. = -

Let me state-that the:Masters, Mates, & Pilots. strongly endorses
the statement submitted to this panel by the four. seagoing organi-
zations represented here,.today. Rather than simply repeat what
my colleagues have already said; I would hke to make and empha-
size two points.

‘First; we believe that if we have- leamed anythlng from the at-
. tacks on our mnation of September-11, it is that we: must be even
more vigilant about -the: threats: -we Tace through the: carriers of
cargo ‘from:overseas.locations. To us, the:only real security.is the
security that comes with the operation of United: States flag ves-
. sels, crewed by United States c1tlzens as guananteed by the Mam—
time Security Program. -

The best way to ensure that ou.r country has ‘the 1nformat10n it
needs regarding the ownership, operation, and crews of commercial
vessels is if they are. American flagged. We believe that a larger;.
more realistic Maritimie Security Program, resulting in more ves-
sels operating under the U.S. flag, with American crews, further.
- enhances. America’s security by giving our country a greater meas-
ure of control over the loading and transportation of cargo destined
for the United States perts, .as.more. of America’s foreign trade is
carried on: vessels owned and- operated by American companies fly-
ing the American flag and crewed by-our mariners. :

Second, if' Congress considers the issues relating to the U.S: citi-
zenship ownersh1p of vessels ogeratmg in the Maritime Security
Program, it is important to understand exactly what:we are sug-
gesting and how maritime labor)s proposal ‘fits under current law.

Neither the Masters, Mates & Pilots union nor the other sea-
faring unions are asking. Congress to abandon :the .United States
- citizen ownership requirements that apply to United States flagged:
foreign-trade vessels, in general, or to vessels in the Maritime Se-
curity -‘Program. In fact, today, there aré a significant number of
United States flagged. vessels that carry eommercial and military
cargoes that are operated by: documentatlon citizens, as allowed by
the existing law. o~
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In addition, Congress, in 1996, when it enacted the Maritime Se-
curity Program, specifically allowed documentation U.S. citizens to
participate directly in the Maritime Security Program. In other
words, a maritime labors proposal is needed and an unprecedented
attempt to. allow documentation ‘United States citizens to operate
U.S. flagged vessels commercially or for the military or an unprece-
dented -attempt to open the Maritime Security Program to docu-
mentation United States citizens.

As I said, Congress has already enacted laws that authonze
those operatlons

On the other hand, maritime labors proposal is an attempt to re-
flect the current ownershlp structure of the American maritime in-
dustry and to incorporate these changes into the law, as already
enacted by the Congress. We suggest that for only existing Mari-
time Security Program vessels the distinction between certain doc-
umentation United States citizens companies and Section 2 United
States citizen companies be eliminated. In all other circumstances
under the Maritime Security Act, our proposal would retain the
system as enacted by Congress in 1996.

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this panel on behalf
of the Masters, Mates, & Pilots, and I wﬂl try to answer whatever
questions you may have for us.

Mr. HUNTER. Thank you.

Mr. RODRIGUEZ. Thank you, sir.

Mr. HUNTER. Captain Rodriguez.

Mr. McKay.

Mr. MCKAY I do not have a prepared statement I agree vnth ev-
erything this panel has just said. We do believe——

Mr. HuNTER. You know, that is some of the ﬁnest testlmony I
have ever heard. [Laughter.] ~

Mr. McKAY. You like that, huh?

Mr. HUNTER. Yes. Was that Gordon Spencer’s idea? [Laughter]

Mr. McKaY. No. [Laughter.]

Mr. McKAY. Though I will give him credit for it, no. I think it
is a long overdue need for this new maritime program. Like any-
thing, it can always be improved. And I thlnk this is a step in the-
right direction. :

r. HUNTER. Okay.

Well, let me kind of summarize what I have heard. Gentlemen,
it is th1s, that you see the American crewing and the American
flagging as the paramount goal here. And that if we had some type
of a—as long as we had an:American directorship, from your per-
spective, an American directorship of these companies, the need to
have the class 2 citizen, the so-called middleman that we have, is
in the present structure, would not be necessary.

You could live with the proposal that has been endorsed, I be-
lieve, by Maersk and the other owners:that would have an Amer-
ican directorship in the companies, but not necessanly an Amer-
ican ownership. .

Is that right?

‘You could live with it? Let me ask you one other question. The
one difference there, though, major difference—we have talked
about maintaining the American interest and control—is that ulti-
mately the stockholders, as I pointed out to one of the gentlemen
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who ‘was here in front of us, ultlmately the stockholders could
make a:decision. :

And if you do not- own the stock in the company that mamtamS‘
control, you do not really have centrol. But it is:true the directors
can,they can go against-the stockholders until the next meeting is
held. And that is about as long as they can do it.- And at that point,
the stockholders control the company.

So you would still have a company which would: be controlled by
the stockholders. ‘And, therefore, perhaps, not meeting all of the
goals in terms of hav1ng an Amerlcan 1nterest being: served maybe
in time of conflict.

The one thing that was Just going through my mind as the testi-
mony was going on, and I was thinking about the situation in Tai-
wan with China, with the other shipping companies, all the global
shipping companies having major stakes and major interests, be-
cause of the massive China trade and shlpbulldlng and other eco-
nomic interests.

And if it came time for them to choose up between Taiwan and
China, well that is almost a choice that we cannot make, as an
American government. And if ‘you ‘watch us tap dance on these
issues, now, that becomes very apparent.

So it would be, maybe, a bridge too far for a global shlppm com- ‘
pany to make that choice in terms of going with the United States
interests over those of China and seeing a wealth of investments
in China and strategic and economiic relationships evaporate. =

So this is, I mean, this is a difficult choice that this panel is
going to have to make if we, in fact, change this. And I would hope
you can appreciate that. And I _]ust wondered if you had _any com-
ments on that. ‘ A ,

Yes, sir? ‘ o .

Mr. Davis. Mr. Chalrman it was not that long ago when the
United States had Amencan ‘merchant marmer compames liner
companies, that had around-the-world services. Back in the 1980s,
I worked for U.S. Lines. U.S. Lines went around the world. We had
infrastructure around the world.

Recently, there was APL, a wholly-owned Amerlcan company,
and Sealand, a wholly-owned American company. But it is gone;
those are gone.

What we also realize is that in the 1nterest of natlonal ‘defense
and what we are hearing from the other. government agencies is
that it is very important to have infrastructure. ,

Mr. HUNTER. You know, that is true. And, 1nc1denta11y, Mr. Tay-:
lor and I and Mr. Saxton have been worried about China Ocean
Shipping Corporation, COSCO, having infrastructure around the
world and not -only trying to: get the Navy base at Long Beach,
which we were suecegsful at stopping,.but now havuag termmals On ;
both ends of the Panama Canal. ‘

And, in light of the testimony that has gone before, there is a
great deal of wisdom in their strategy, because it has now -been
pointed out.very clearly that simply having controls of the: ships is
not-even haif-the ballgame. You have EOt to have control-of the in- :
frastructure and’ the intermodal -capability: -to move cargo once 1t
gets to the shore. ;
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And so the China Ocean Shipping Corporation is, for practical
purposes, totally owned by the Politburo in China—in Beijing: They:
are looking at this -thing in terms of a total package. And that'is
why they go.out and buy terminals and/or rent them or control
them. And why Hutchinson- Whampoa now has-facilities at both .
ends of the Panama Canal. They are not simply moving to control'
bottoms or ships, but to control systems.

And so that points out, I think, for us, as Amencans who want
to guarantee the ability to move cargo-from point ‘A -to point B;.
whether it is in Afghanistan or some other theatre, is that even
flontrolhng the ships, we are halfway home, but not all the way

ome

And so you have posed this really maJor problem to us. Because
I presume that the American President Lines and Sealand, in the
old days, had the total system, did they.not? -

Mr. Davis. If it is that even controlling the ships, we are halfway
home, but not all the way home.

And so you have posed this really major problem to us. Because
I presume that the American President Lines and Sealand, in the
old days, had the total system, did they not?

Mr. DAvis. Yes.

Mr. HUNTER. And today we do not have it. :

Mr. Davis. That is correct.

Mr. HUNTER. And so, to some degree, we are at the mercy of the
world—the community that, ‘now controls it and has the pink slip
to those operations.

Mr. Davis. You are absolutely right, Mr. Chairman. American
used to have economic control of the seas, of the world’s oceans,
economic control and control of moving the cargo around the world.
We do not anymore. And we have to realize that. We have a won-
derful Navy out there that can, through force, do things. But as far
as the economic control, as far as passenger, carrying cargo from
port to port around the world, carrying m111tary cargo when it is
needed, we no longer have, we no longer control the seas.

Mr. HUNTER. Okay. :

Mr. Davis. And we all know that a nation that controls the seas
is always in much better shape than one who does not.

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Taylor.

Mr. TAYLOR. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Saxton.

Mr. SAXTON. Mr. Chairman, I think T will follow Mr. Taylors ex-
ample. We have a meeting with the chairman of the full committee
here in less than 10 minutes.

-Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Well, thank you, gentlemen, for being w1th us.

Well gentlemen, you have laid out very clearly the pos1tlon I
think, very precisely the position of your orgamzatlons on thls pro-
posed compromise language.

What I'would ask you to do:and also have——do we have anythmg
for the record, here?

Okay, we got ‘a letter from the Amencan Shipbuilding Assocla-
tion that we will, without objection, we will take into the record.

[The information referred to can be found in the Appendlx on
page 104.]
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Gentlemen, what I'would like to ask you to do is, if you have any.
additional comments or recommendations—and we will try to stay
in contact with you as we try to see if we cannot put together a
package that solves this problem, while maintaining America’s in-
terests—so if you have any, we will try to be in. contact with you
and have the staff working with you.

If you: have any additional thoughts or reflections on these
things, we will keep the record open and get them to Mr. Johnston

But, thank you so much for being with us today

Mr. TAYLOR. Mr. Chairman,

Mr. HUNTER. You have laid a very difficult—we have a very d1f-
ficult policy decision here at our feet.

Mr. TAYLOR. Mr. Chairman, real—

Mr. HUNTER. Yes, sir, Mr. Taylor.

Mr. TAYLOR. One of you gentlemen talked about 12 vessels being
taken out of the fleet in the past couple of years.

Mr. Davis. I did.

Mr. TAYLOR. You said some were scrapped, some were reflagged.

Mr. Davis. Yes.

Mr. TAYLOR. What was the ratio?

Mr. Davis. The ratio of those 12 vessels, between scrappin
reflagging? I do not know what—I would say 50-50, but I do not
know the exact numbers.

Mr. TAYLOR, Could you get that number for me, please?

Mr. DAvIS. We could get that for you, yes.

Mr. TAYLOR. That is the only question.

[The information referred to can be found in the Appendix begin-
ning on page 109.]

Mr. HUNTER. Okay.

Thank you very much for your testimony. And maintain some
contact with Mr. Johnston. Flood him with information so that he
has little time to do anything else.

All right. Thanks.

[Whereupon, at 3:54 p.m., the panel was adjourned.]





